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our vision is for a future where a healthy Waikato River 
sustains abundant life and prosperous communities who, 
in turn, are all responsible for restoring and protecting 
the health and wellbeing of the Waikato River, and all it 
embraces, for generations to come.

Vision
for the Waikato River

these words form part of the vision and are taken from 
the maimai aroha, or lament, by Kiingi taawhiao, the 
second Maaori King, in which he recorded his adoration 
for the Waikato River and the significance of the river 
as a treasure for all generations. these visionary words 
inspire the actions that will be necessary to restore the 
health and wellbeing of the Waikato River.

Tooku awa koiora me oona pikonga 
he kura tangihia o te maataamuri.
The river of life, each curve 
more beautiful than the last.



in presenting this 6th annual Report 
of the Waikato River authority we 

again acknowledge the support and 
commitment from the five Waikato 

River iwi and the special working 
relationship between the authority 

and the Waikato Regional council.

Reflecting on the progress made as 
part of the inaugural Five Year Report 
also gives us renewed enthusiasm and 
commitment for the work to be done in 
the decades ahead.

the presentation of the Five Year Report 
also gave the authority the opportunity 
to explain and communicate the 
importance of the vision and strategy 
as the primary direction setting 
document for the future health and 
wellbeing of the Waikato and Waipa 
Rivers. the national news media 
interest generated by the release of 
the Five Year Report allowed a new 
audience of New Zealanders to gain a 
better understanding of what te ture 
Whaimana o te awa o Waikato means.

of special note was the presence of 
the Minister for the environment, Hon 
Dr Nick smith, to receive the Five Year 
Report. the Minister’s support for the 
authority has been a key part of our 
success and his warm comments of 
commendation and congratulation were 
especially welcome.

Last year was significant for the 

Waikato River Authority as we reported 

on our first five years of operation  

to the Crown and River iwi.

Hon John Luxton Tukoroirangi Morgan 
co-chair	 co-chair

at this time, it is worth once again 
reflecting on the two different ways that 
the authority can bring effectiveness to 
the vision and strategy.

Firstly, via the funding of restoration 
activities, where we have continued to 
make solid progress with 172 projects 
now funded with a total of $27.1 
million in grants. this includes funding 
for projects involving iwi or marae 
based organisations over this period 
of approximately $10 million. Much 
more can be achieved with support and 
investment in capacity building.

secondly, it is also our responsibility to 
leverage the standing and importance of 
the vision and strategy in the country’s 
legal and regulatory processes. in the 
past year this has seen our continued 
involvement in the Healthy Rivers: 
plan for change/Wai ora: He Rautaki 
Whakapaipai. this project is hugely 
important for the environmental targets 
and limits it will set for the Waikato 
and Waipa Rivers and their future 
wellbeing. in addition, the authority 

was able to make its views known on 
the matter of exceptions under the 
National policy statement on Fresh 
Water. our view put to the crown 
is that there can be no exceptions 
where such exceptions conflict with 
the vision and strategy. the past year 
has also seen us available to make 
recommendations on commissioners for 
resource management hearings, with 
an authority appointment to the aFFco 
hearing on its consent to discharge 
into the Waikato River and another 
appointment for a sand quarry in the 
lower catchment.

As	the	Waikato	River	Clean-up	Trust,	
the body responsible for the allocation 
of funding for projects, was formed 
at the same time as the Waikato River 
authority (which is the sole trustee of 
the	Waikato	River	Clean-up	Trust),	this	
annual Report therefore includes the 
affairs	of	both	the	Clean-up	Trust	and	
the authority.

teenaa koutou, teenaa koutou, teenaa 
koutou katoa.

L to R Co-chair Tukoroirangi Morgan, CE Bob Penter, Minister 
for the Environment Hon Dr Nick Smith , Co-chair Hon John 
Luxton at the launch of the Authority’s first Five Year Report.

Report
of the Co-chairs
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Highlights

Looking forward

Five Year Report
» The presentation of the Authority’s first Five Year Report 

to the Crown and River iwi was a major milestone and 
highlight which took place at the beginning of 2016. The 
Minister for the Environment, the Hon Dr Nick Smith, 
received the report on behalf of the Crown at a function 
hosted by the Waikato-Tainui College for Research and 
Development at Hopuhopu. The report was presented in 
accordance with the enabling legislation of the Authority 
and focused on the effectiveness and achievements of 
the first five years of the Authority.

» An additional outcome from the presentation of 
the Five Year Report was widespread national news 
media coverage of the Authority and its work and the 
importance of Te Ture Whaimana o te awa o Waikato.

Report Card on the Waikato and  
Waipa Rivers
» The publication of the inaugural and interim Report 

Card on the health and wellbeing of the Waikato and 
Waipa Rivers was completed in association with the 
presentation of the Five Year Report.

» The Report Card combines data from eight different 
indicators giving report card scores for 17 different sites 
which are then combined to give an overall grade. The 
initial Report Grade is a C+ which is regarded as slightly 
better than a low grade, delivering on only some of the 
Vision and Strategy aspirations for a healthy river.

Promotion of the Vision and Strategy
» This major aspect of the Authority’s role saw significant 

involvement and commitment to the Healthy Rivers 
Plan change as a means of achieving environmental 
targets and limits for the Waikato and Waipa Rivers. 
The Authority was also able to significantly progress its 
view that it sees no place for exceptions to the National 
Policy Statement on Fresh Water within the Waikato 
River catchment. The Waikato River Authority provided 
support and advice in the development of the Cultural 
Impact Assessment, in relation to, the re-consenting 
of the Watercare wastewater discharge at Parker Lane 
Stream. The CIA has resulted in a significant upgrade 
in technology used and as a result the water quality 
discharged is better than the river itself.

Progress on Restoration Strategy
» The identification of sites and projects for the Waipa 

catchment has been completed, these will be now 
prioritised by iwi and stakeholders. Identification of 
priority locations for restoration in the upper Waikato is 
also underway.

» The five to 15-year Restoration Strategy for the Waikato 
and Waipa Rivers is a collaboration between the 
Waikato Regional Council, DairyNZ, and the Waikato 
River Authority. The Strategy will be the blue print for 
major restoration work across the catchment. More than 
12 months of work has gone into the Strategy to date 
with its completion expected late in 2017. The support 
received has been tremendous.

Fifth funding round
» The fifth funding round for the Authority saw 32  

new projects and one existing project receive a  
total of $5 million.

Major projects included:

•   A funding contribution of $448,000 for the Rotokauri 
Reserve restoration being managed by the Waikato 
District Council near Hamilton.

•   A continuation of the Matahuru Wetland restoration in the 
southern area of Lake Waikare with funding of $310,000.

•   Funding of $830,000 towards stage two and completion 
of the Waikato and Waipa River Restoration Strategy 
providing a five to 15-year master plan for the 
restoration of the catchment.

Investment fund
» The total amount in the investment fund increased by 

$8.6m to a total $49.7m in the year to 30 June 2016.  This 
includes investment returns of approximately $0.7m and 
net cash flows to and from the fund.

» The investment fund is conservatively invested and the 
negative returns from Global Shares (down -7.2%) were 
more than offset by positive returns from Australasian 
Shares (up +6%) and Fixed Interest (up +4.4%).  The fund 
is to be used at the end of the Crown’s 30-year funding 
commitment to ensure ongoing funding for restoration 
initiatives.

Annual General Meeting
» The Waikato River Authority’s Annual General Meeting 

for the 2015 year was held in the lower Waikato River 
catchment in Pukekohe in November. This was the most 
well attended AGM for the Authority and the Waikato 
River Clean-up Trust in five years. A number of funded 
projects presented on the work they had carried out in 
front of a large audience of stakeholders and iwi.

Media Coverage
» The Waikato River Authority continued to receive 

positive media coverage during the year. A particular 
highlight was a Country Calendar programme on TVNZ 
featuring Stu Muir and Kim Jobson and the environmental 
restoration work they have carried out on their farm 
with funding from the Authority. While being day-to-day 
dairy farmers they have also undertaken considerable 
whitebait habitat restoration on the margins of their 
farm in the lower Waikato River.

Enhanced reputation 
» The Waikato River Authority continued to focus on 

building its reputation as an organisation operating in 
the government, iwi, and business sectors. A highlight in 
this regard was a strong endorsement for the Authority in 
the Auditor-General’s report on Principles for Effectively 
Co-governing Natural Resources. In particular, the report 
commented favourably in regard to the Authority’s 
accountability, transparency and financial sustainability.

Key Relationships
» A key area of focus for the Authority in the coming year is to put 

increased effort into relationships with statutory authorities and key 
stakeholders, particularly Waikato and Waipa River iwi. The Authority 
will look to prioritise resources in order to put additional effort into this 
area, particularly in relation to opportunities to further promote Te Ture 
Whaimana o te awa o Waikato.

Healthy Rivers Plan
» Healthy Rivers: Plan for Change/Wai Ora: He Rautaki Whakapaipai is 

expected to be adopted for notification by the Waikato Regional Council 
in the coming year. The scale of the project has meant some delays in 
bringing about notification, however the Authority is committed to 
having continued input and participation in the development of the 
plan as part of the Waikato Regional Council and Waikato River iwi joint 
working party.

Completion of the Sixth Funding Round
» The sixth funding round for the Waikato River Authority will take 

place in the coming year. There will be up to $6 million available 
for qualifying clean-up projects. In the first five funding rounds 172 
projects were funded with a total funding allocation of $27.1 million.

Restoration Strategy
» A large body of work will be required to bring the Restoration Strategy 

for the Waikato and Waipa rivers close to finalisation.

» At the end of the coming year it is expected that restoration priorities 
will have been identified across the catchment and final feedback from 
iwi and other key stakeholders will be close to completion.

Health and Safety
» There will be a continued focus on health and safety in the coming 

year. The Authority will continue to work proactively with all funding 
recipients to ensure compliance with Healthy and Safety legislation.

172 
projects

27.1$

IN FIVE YEARS

ALLOCATED

2015

$5m 
allocated to 
32 projects

2014

$6m 
allocated to 
33 projects

2013

$5.5m 
allocated to 
33 projects*

2012

$5m 
allocated to 
30 projects

2011

$5.6m 
allocated to 
44 projects*
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million

*Subsequent to being approved, in 2013 three projects totalling $0.5m did not proceed and in 2011 $0.1m of funding was not used.



Waikato River Authority

PO Box 9338

Hamilton 3240

New Zealand

Attention: Bob Penter

Dear Sir

Review of the WRA’s Role in Promoting the Vision and Strategy

Further to your request for Beca Ltd (Beca) to undertake a review of Vision and Strategy  
(Te Ture Whaimana o Te Awa o Waikato) promotion carried out by the Waikato River Authority 
we have prepared an addendum to the Five Year Report to Crown and River iwi on this matter.

We note the increased interest in further detail of the Authority’s promotion of the Vision and 
Strategy since the preparation of the Five Year Report.

We further note that the Vision and Strategy stands firmly in its own right as the prevailing 
and primary direction setting document on matters affecting the Waikato River catchment. 
This status has ensured an increasing awareness and profile for the Vision and Strategy.

Our review, in the following table, concentrates on the ways in which the Authority has 
directly been engaged in pursuing support for the Vision and Strategy through legal, planning 
and other processes and the involvement we are aware of that the Authority has had with 
local authorities and other agencies. We have captured a representative list of promotion 
activities, but this is not an assessment of the effectiveness or outcomes of this promotion, 
however in our view it demonstrates the Authority has been active in its promotion of the 
Vision and Strategy.

Nga mihi

Richard Douch
Manager - Central Environments

on behalf of

Beca Ltd
Direct Dial: +64-7-838 1262

Email: richard.douch@beca.com

19 August 2016

Level 2 Waitomo House
6 Garden Place, Hamilton 3240, New Zealand
T: +64 7 838 3828 // F: +64 7 838 3808 
E: info@beca.com // www.beca.com
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Rototuna Primary School students 
planting their gully under direction from 
the Trees for Survival Trust.
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Review of the WRA’s Role in Promoting the Vision and Strategy

Restoration Forum

•	 In 2013 the WRA established the Waikato River Restoration Forum as a strategic 
leadership group to guide the implementation of restoration activities giving 
effect to and promoting the Vision and Strategy. The Forum is a collaboration 
between industry, central and local government, and iwi organisations.

Economic Impact JV

•	 The Waikato River Authority was integral in the formation of the Waikato 
River Economic Impact Joint Venture project. This was a multi-party group of 
government, local government, and businesses. The project group was chaired 
by the Waikato River Authority Chief Executive. The project looked at the (then 
proposed) National Objectives Framework for fresh water and modelled the 
impact this could have on the Waikato economy. The work carried out saved an 
estimated 18 months of research time for the Healthy Rivers Plan change.

King Salmon and 
Puke Coal cases 

•	 The WRA gained a legal opinion on the King Salmon and Puke Coal cases. This 
legal opinion was then provided to the Waikato Regional Council (and River 
iwi) to argue for the manner and extent to which effect should be given to the 
Vision and Strategy as the prevailing and primary direction setting document for 
activities that affect the Waikato River Catchment. 

•	 In relation to the Puke Coal Environment Court case, the WRA wrote a letter 
of support on request of Waikato-Tainui, in agreement that the community 
proposed mitigation of the environmental effects of the consent best gave effect 
to the Vision and Strategy. 

•	 The WRA gained further updated advice on the meaning of ‘give effect to’ in 
the context of the Vision and Strategy, in light of the Supreme Court decision on 
‘King Salmon’. This advice was provided by Buddle Findlay.  

Vision and Strategy 
for the Waikato River

•	 First review of the Vision and Strategy was completed in June 2011. No 
amendments were considered necessary which enabled the Regional Policy 
Statement (RPS) to be completed, and the HRP process to commence in 2012. 
This ensured no delay in effect being given to the Vision and Strategy leading 
to key improvements in addressing the contaminants of sediment, E.coli, 
nitrogen, and phosphorous.

•	 Due to the high level of the Vision and Strategy, there was difficulty in its 
interpretation by the general public. The WRA put together a document 
simplifying what the Vision and Strategy means and its objectives. This was 
also sent out to River iwi.

•	 The WRA set out principles for limiting water allocation and contaminant loss, 
and presented these in a letter to the Waikato Regional Council for use in their 
policy making process.

•	 The WRA CE presented to the Waipa co-governance meeting outlining the 
role of the WRA, the status of the Vision and Strategy, and providing detail as 
to what was being achieved in relation to both restoration funding and the 
implementation of the Vision and Strategy.

Iwi Environmental 
Management Plans 
and Fisheries Plans

•	 The WRA has been active in the funding of River iwi environmental management 
plans and fisheries plans for the promotion of the Vision and Strategy within 
an iwi-based policy framework. To date the WRA have funded 8 such plans, 
including; 

•	 Waikato Tainui Environmental Management Plan and Fisheries Plan

•	 Raukawa Environmental Management Plan and Fisheries Plan 

•	 Te Arawa River Iwi Trust Environmental Management Plan and Fisheries Plan 

•	 Maniapoto Environmental Management Plan and Fisheries Plan

Waikato Regional 
Policy Statement 

•	 The WRA appointed a hearing panel member which enabled increased awareness 
and support of the Vision and Strategy throughout the decision-making process.

•	 The WRA was involved as a s274 RMA party giving representation at proceedings 
before the Environment Court with the objective of ensuring the Vision and 
Strategy was contained within the RPS, and no attempts were made to detract 
from its implementation as per the River Settlement Legislation. 

Waikato District Plan–  
Plan Change 5

•	 The WRA undertook an evaluation of the Waikato District Plan and provided 
comment on their findings through a letter to Waikato District Council in relation 
to alignment to the Vision and Strategy. 

Waipa District Plan
•	 The WRA undertook an assessment of the Waipa District Plan in regard to 

giving effect to the Vision and Strategy for the Waikato River, and supported 
amendments to best give effect to the Vision and Strategy.

South Waikato 
District Plan 

•	 The WRA undertook an assessment on the draft South Waikato District Plan in 
regard to giving effect to the Vision and Strategy.

•	 The WRA convened a hui with Council and Raukawa staff to identify gaps in the 
draft plan in relation to the Vision and Strategy, and worked to ensure effect was 
given to the Vision and Strategy.  

Hamilton City  
River Plan

•	 WRA staff attended and had input to regular update meetings with HCC 
throughout the development process.  The WRA presented to the Rivers Plan 
committee/board regarding the requirements of the Vision and Strategy 
legislation to enable the outcomes of the River Plan to align.  

•	 The Hamilton Mayor and senior policy staff briefed the WRA Board on progress 
and received direct feedback.

Healthy Rivers  
Plan Change

•	 The WRA was involved in the setup phase of the Healthy Rivers Plan Change 
(HRP) and had involvement throughout the HRP process. 

•	 The WRA had involvement bringing groups together to support an independent 
technical leadership group (TLG) approach, and leading a presentation of a 
preferred approach at a workshop with some 50 stakeholders present who voted 
in support of the WRA led proposal.

•	 The WRA lobbied to have a seat on the steering committee of Te Roopuu Hautuu 
(TRH) so it could promote effect being given to Te Ture Whaimana.

•	 The WRA promoted the use of an independent chair for the collaborative 
stakeholder group (CSG). The WRA participated in appointments of the 
independent CSG chair, members of the TLG, and provided a suggested approach 
for determining CSG membership (i.e. for sectors and interest groups to select 
their own representatives).

•	 The WRA provided the CSG (via the WRC and directly through presentations at 
CSG meetings) with a list of principles to guide giving effect to the Vision and 
Strategy through policy development within the HRP. 

•	 The WRA has attended and had input to public and CSG meetings. 

•	 The WRA has had meetings with River iwi to discuss desired outcomes and 
achievements of the Healthy Rivers process, in delivering on the Vision and 
Strategy. 

•	 The WRA has requested an opportunity to participate at the decision-making 
level for the upcoming HRP hearings to ensure effect is given to the Vision and 
Strategy.

•	 The WRA attended over 75% of the steering group and related meetings held, 
based on the records available. 

PLATFORM FOR 
INVOLVEMENT 

WAIKATO RIVER AuTHORITY (WRA) INVOLVEMENT
PLATFORM FOR 
INVOLVEMENT 

WAIKATO RIVER AuTHORITY (WRA) INVOLVEMENT

8 9
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PLATFORM FOR 
INVOLVEMENT 

WAIKATO RIVER AuTHORITY (WRA) INVOLVEMENT
PLATFORM FOR 
INVOLVEMENT 

WAIKATO RIVER AuTHORITY (WRA) INVOLVEMENT

General promotion 
and Education

•	 Highlighted presentations delivered by the WRA to promote the Vision and 
Strategy include: 

•	 2011 RMLA conference in Hamilton 
•	 2011 Water New Zealand conference in Rotorua 
•	 2011 Presentation with the New Zealand Landcare Trust
•	 2012 Waikato River symposium at Hopuhopu (including sponsorship)
•	 2013 Water New Zealand conference in Hamilton 
•	 2014 New Zealand Trade and Industrial Waste Forum conference in 

Hamilton 
•	 2014 New Zealand Institute of Agricultural and Horticultural Science 2015 

International Society for River Science conference in Wisconsin, USA 
•	 2015 Freshwater Forum
•	 2015 University of Waikato guest lecture
•	 2015 Awatere presentation 
•	 2015 Te Awamutu hui to stakeholders on Vision and Strategy and 

Restoration Strategy
•	 2015 New Zealand Association of Resource Management annual conference 

in Hamilton 
•	 2015 ANZ Bank presentation 
•	 2015 NZPI Waikato branch AGM presentation
•	 2016 Launch of Rangiriri spillway planting by Te Kanae Kakariki Trust
•	 The WRA participated in the 2016 Waipa Catchment Committee field trip

Climate Change and 
Emissions Trading 
Scheme Review

•	 A submission was lodged by the WRA in regard to the Emissions Trading 
Scheme (ETS) review and upper Waikato River catchment land use conversions.  
A select committee (Finance and Expenditure) submission was also lodged 
from the WRA on the subsequent Climate Change Response (Emissions Trading 
and other matters) Amendment Bill.

DoC Waikato 
Conservation 
Management Strategy

•	 The WRA engaged Buddle Findlay and provided feedback to the Department 
of Conservation with regards to the Draft Waikato Conservation Management 
Strategy and supporting the requirements of the Vision and Strategy.

General promotion 
and Education

•	 Resource Consents – The WRA appointed commissioners in consultation with 
River iwi for approximately 15 hearings.

•	 Te Taniwha o Waikato (Waikato-Tainui) – The WRA provided support and 
advice leading to a Cultural Impact Assessment (CIA) being undertaken in 
relation to the Watercare wastewater discharge at Parker Lane Stream. The CIA 
contributed to an upgrade to technology used which we understand will result 
in the quality of the water discharged being better than the river itself.  

•	 The WRA submitted a letter to the Ministry for the Environment to highlight 
Te Ture Whaimana as the prevailing document for activities in the Waikato 
River catchment, and that any exceptions proposed within the National Policy 
Statement for Freshwater Management would be inconsistent. The Ministry 
agreed with the WRA’s view.

•	 A letter from Buddle Findlay on behalf of the WRA was sent to all agencies 
with obligations within the Waikato River Catchment (i.e. the area over which 
the Vision and Strategy applies) outlining key aspects of the Vision and 
Strategy and requesting feedback and examples on how they were giving 
effect to their obligations. This exercise is to be repeated in the near future. 
Although compliance is not a function of the WRA, it is considered important 
to ensure agencies are reminded from time to time of their obligations.

•	 Workshop held at Karapiro with Mayors and Chief Executives of local 
authorities with discussion on the future of the river and collective 
involvement in supporting its clean-up.

•	 The WRA has participated in the Land and Water Forum in an ongoing capacity 
since July 2011. 

•	 The WRA provided input to a Waipa District Council led initiative around 
mitigation measures for the Cambridge wastewater treatment plant.

•	 The WRA entered and attended the 2016 IPANZ awards. The entry and the 
attendance both provided exposure for the WRA and the Vision and Strategy 
more broadly across ‘all of government’.

•	 The WRA attended the Trees for Survival Trust planting at Rototuna School to 
explain the role of the Authority and the Vision and Strategy to teachers and 
pupils.

•	 The WRA provides sponsorship of the catchment improvement award as part 
of the Ballance NZ Farm Environment Awards for the Waikato Region. 

•	 The WRA publish 4 newsletters a year with each newsletter featuring stories 
promoting the Vision and Strategy. There have been 13 newsletters published 
in total since 2013 and distributed via a database to approximately 500 
people.  
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Funding recipients 2015/2016

OrganisatiOn apprOved 
MaxiMuM prOject

Waikato Regional Council $828,797
Waikato and Waipa Rivers Restoration 
Strategy 

Waikato Regional Council $32,640
Mangapu River Riparian Restoration –  
Te Uira A2

Lower Mangapiko Stream Care Group $43,755
Lower Mangapiko Stream Restoration 
2016

Tauhei Marae $100,000 Mangatea Catchment Restoration Project

Waikato District Council $448,120 Lake Rotokauri Restoration

Waikato Regional Council $344,932 Mangaotama Wetland Restoration

Te Awa River Ride Charitable Trust $200,000
Te Awa River Ride – Avantidrome to 
Mystery Creek Section

Waikato Regional Council $85,185
Lake Otamatearoa and Parkinson’s  
Lake Restoration

Ngati Tahu-Ngati Whaoa Trust $64,677
Enhancement of Nga Awa Purua Block  
on the Waikato River Margins –  
Stage 2 

Waikato Rivercare $172,759 Mangawara Oxbow Wetlands Restoration

Ngati Haua Mahi Trust $203,000
Karapiro Catchment –  
Riparian Planting Project

Landcorp Farming Ltd $38,760 Te Kopia Road Swamp Restoration

Waipa District Council $37,267
Constructed Treatment System on Eastern 
Lake Ngaroto Drain Inflows

Landowner – Lance Kerr $77,336
Lake Rotongaro Riparian 
Restoration 

Waikato Regional Council $34,650
Lake Waikare Northern Foreshore 
Enhancement 

St Peter’s School $29,366
St Peter’s School Wetland Project with 
Ngati Haua Mahi Trust 

Ngati Tahu-Ngati Whaoa Runanga Trust $97,221
Te Awa o Waikato – Ngati Tahu-Ngati 
Whaoa Cultural History 

OrganisatiOn apprOved 
MaxiMuM prOject

Muir Family $49,000
Muir Family Whitebait Habitat Restoration 
Project 2016 

Waikato River Trails $205,000
Waikato River Trails Riparian 
Restoration 

Nikau Family Estate Trust $309,843
Stage 2 – Restoration of the Matahuru 
Wetland Lake Waikare

Maurea Marae Trust $38,421
Maurea Marae River Entrance Restoration 
and Access Enhancement Stage I

Waahi Whaanui Trust $301,643 Collaborative restoration project

Whaingaroa Harbour Care $211,080
Tunaeke Stream Riparian  
Enhancement 2 

Beef and Lamb NZ $170,300
Sheep and Beef Farmers –  
Working for the Waikato

Landowner – Sean Francis $18,337 Mangamingi Stream Restoration 

Mangakotukutuku Stream Care Group Inc $41,400
Mangakotukutuku Stream Restoration 
(Rukuhia) 

Mangakotukutuku Stream Care Group Inc $115,000 Peacockes Riparian Restoration Project

Lewisridge Farms $80,000
Lewisridge Farms Riparian 
Enhancement 

Muir Family $30,000
Motu Kakaho Whitebait Habitat 
Restoration Project

Indufor Asia Pacific $100,000
Waipa Catchment Afforestation  
Feasibility Study 

Riverdale Group Ltd $358,714 Hooker Road Riverbank Restoration 

University of Waikato $39,500
International Society for River  
Science Conference 

St Peter’s School  $50,563
St Peter’s School Riparian Planting Project 
with Ngati Haua Mahi Trust

Waikato River Authority Annual Report 2016
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Waikato River Authority
our Board

Tukoroirangi Morgan
co-chair, iwi appointee

tukoroirangi is from 
Waikato-Tainui	and	his	
hapuu are Ngati Makirangi 
and Ngati Mahuta.

His professional career 
includes secondary school 
teaching, television, 
journalism, and in 1996 
he was elected Member 
of parliament for te 
taihauauru electorate. 
He is currently president 
of the Maori party. 
tukoroirangi was formerly 
the chairman of te 
arataura – the executive 
board	of	Waikato-Tainui	Te	
Kauhanganui incorporated 
and	Co-Negotiator	for	
the	Waikato-Tainui	treaty	
claims.

His current responsibilities 
include:
•	Director	of	Tainui	Group	 
   Holdings
•	Chair	of	Tainui			  
   Development authority
•	Member	of	the	Iwi	 
   leaders forum
•	Kahui	Ariki		 
   Representative:
-		Waikato	Tainui	Tribal	

executive – te arataura
-		Waikato	Tainui	Tribal	

parliament –  
te Kauhanganui

Hon John Luxton Qso
co-chair, crown appointee

John was a Member of 
parliament from the 
Waikato Region for 1986 
through until 2002. as a 
cabinet Minister for nine 
years he held a number of 
portfolios including lands, 
Forestry, agriculture, 
and Maori affairs. He is 
a graduate of Massey 
University – B.agr.sc., 
M.Mgmt and he has an 
Honorary D.sc from  
lincoln University. His 
career prior to becoming 
an Mp involved farming 
and international 
consulting. He has farming 
and business interests in 
the Waikato. He is currently 
chairman of the asia NZ 
Foundation and pouarua 
Farm partnership ltd, and 
is	a	Director	of	Tatua	Co-op	
Dairy co ltd and Wallace 
corporation ltd.

Roger Pikia
Dep co-chair/ chair  
investment committee
iwi appointee

Roger is the chair of the 
investment committee 
on the Waikato River 
authority.

Roger is of te arawa and 
tainui descent. He is chair 
of the te arawa River iwi 
trust and was the inaugural 
chief executive officer of 
te arawa group Holdings 
(TAGH),	the	commercial	
arm of te arawa. Roger 
was previously a business 
consultant with a range 
of commercial clients. 
this included consultancy 
work for the New Zealand 
government in United 
Nations climate change 
forums across europe. 
Roger has a background in 
the primary sector having 
spent five years as a senior 
manager with agResearch. 
His interests include the 
dairy, sheep and beef 
industries.

Roger continues to serve 
as a chairman and trustee 
of	Māori	land	trusts	
which hold interests 
in the geothermal and 
agribusiness sectors.

Jenni Vernon mnZm jp
Dep co-chair
crown appointee

Jenni has wide governance 
and administration 
experience in the public 
sector, particularly  in local 
government.

she is currently working 
as the strategic planning 
and Resource Management 
team leader for the 
Waikato District council, 
and was previously chair 
of environment Waikato. 
she has a MMs Hons (1st 
Class).

Jenni currently sits on 
the New Zealand National 
Fieldays society Board and 
has just completed her 
term on the New Zealand 
geographic Board.

she is an accredited 
hearings commissioner 
‘chair’ for RMa processes.

previously she held the 
position of chairman of 
environment Waikato, 
Deputy chair of the open 
polytechnic and was a 
member of the University 
of Waikato council. in 
1985 she was awarded 
a Kellogg leadership 
scholarship and in 1994 a 
Nuffield scholarship. Jenni 
farms in partnership with 
her husband on a dry stock 
farm at Waingaro.

Peter Buckley
crown appointee

peter is a councillor 
and past chair of the 
Waikato Regional council 
that	has	broad-ranging	
responsibilities for the 
economic, environmental, 
social,	and	cultural	well-
being of the Waikato 
region.

peter was first elected to 
the council to represent 
North	Waikato-Hauraki	in	
2007.

prior to his election to 
the Regional council, 
peter had 25 years 
involvement with Waikato 
Federated Farmers. His 
leadership positions 
at branch and regional 
level culminated in him 
holding the presidency 
before becoming council 
chairman.

peter has also been 
heavily involved in his 
local community working 
with schools, sports 
clubs, support trusts and 
veterinary clubs. He has 
dairy farmed in partnership 
with Judi for 41 years at 
island Block. peter is the 
Regional chairman of the 
Waikato Medical Research 
Foundation and is also 
a member of the Future 
proof committee.

Weo Maag
iwi appointee

Weo is a tribal member 
of Maniapoto and is a 
current trustee of their iwi 
authority, Maniapoto Maori 
trust Board. He was an 
inaugural member of the 
guardians establishment 
committee (forerunner 
to	the	WRA)	and	was	also	
a negotiator for the Nga 
wai o Maniapoto (Waipa 
River)	Act	2012.	Weo	
has a particular focus 
on the sustainable use 
of land and water, and 
improving economic 
and environmental 
performance specifically 
on ahuwhenua trusts 
(Maori	land).	Weo	
is a member of the 
collaborative stakeholders 
group for the Healthy 
Rivers: plan for change/
Wai ora: He Rautaki 
Whakapaipai. He is also a 
trustee and a committee 
member of several 
entities and has a diploma 
in agribusiness, and is 
also a certified Resource 
Management act hearings 
commissioner.

Weo lives in te Kuiti.

Alan Livingston onZm
crown appointee

alan is a sitting councillor 
on the Waikato Regional 
council after completing 
four terms as the Mayor 
of the Waipa District. in 
addition he completed 
two terms as a Waipa 
councillor. He is a crown 
appointee to the Waikato 
River authority and was 
a crown appointee to the 
authority’s forerunner the 
guardians establishment 
committee.

He is a graduate of lincoln 
University with a B agri 
com in valuation and farm 
management.

For the past 30 years alan 
has been a sheep and 
beef farmer at te pahu. 
He is a life member of the 
Queen elizabeth ii trust 
and a covenanter of two 
bush blocks plus smaller 
bush areas which have 
been fenced and retired. 
He is a former trustee 
of the Maungatautari 
ecological island trust with 
which he has continuing 
involvement.

Alan	is	the	co-chair	of	
Waikato Regional council’s 
Healthy River: Wai ora 
committee and chair 
of Waipa catchment 
committee, and also a 
trustee of sport Waikato.

Traci Houpapa mnZm jp
crown appointee

traci is an award winning 
company director and 
a recognised industry 
leader. she specialises in 
strategic and economic 
development advice to 
Maori, iwi, public, and 
private sector clients 
throughout New Zealand. 
traci is known for her 
strong and inclusive 
leadership and her clear 
focus on building the 
wealth and prosperity of 
aotearoa New Zealand.

in 2012 traci was named 
as one of the top ten most 
influential women in New 
Zealand agribusiness. 
in 2013 she was named 
amongst the listener’s 
top ten influencers in 
New Zealand and was 
a finalist in the Fairfax 
Media Westpac Women of 
Influence	Awards	(‘WOI’).	
in 2014, traci won the Woi 
Board and Management 
award. in 2015, Westpac 
named traci on its ‘NZ 
Women powerbrokers’ 
list. traci has also recently 
been awarded the Massey 
University Distinguished 
alumni service award for 
services to agribusiness 
and Maori.

traci has an MBa from 
Massey University and 
is a Member of the New 
Zealand order of Merit, a 
Justice of the peace, and a 
Marriage celebrant.

Vanessa Eparaima 
mnZm
iwi appointee

vanessa (Raukawa, 
Tuwharetoa)	is	the	
Raukawa settlement trust 
executive chairperson, 
chairperson of the 
Raukawa charitable trust, 
and a Director of Raukawa 
iwi Development ltd. 
she is the chairperson of 
Kakano (a six member iwi 
collective which holds a 
shareholding in Kaingaroa 
Timberlands),	a	Director	of	
cNi iwi Holdings and the 
Co-Chair	of	CNI	Iwi	Land	
Management.  vanessa 
was recently appointed 
to the council of te 
Wānanga	o	Aotearoa	(Te	
Mana	Whakahaere)	and	is	a	
recipient of a New Zealand 
order of Merit for services 
to Maori. she is a business 
consultant, company 
director, and former chief 
executive in the tourism 
sector. vanessa sits on a 
range	of	business	and	not-
for-profit	boards.	She	is	a	
passionate advocate for 
Maori, the community, and 
for environmental issues. 
she has a strong history 
of working with the wider 
community,	kaumātua,	iwi	
chairs, Ministers, Members 
of parliament, and 
numerous stakeholders to 
achieve positive outcomes 
for the communities she 
serves. vanessa is married 
to Ngarepo and is the 
proud mother of three 
young adults.

Heemi Biddle
iwi appointee

Waikato iti, e rere mai na i 
nga maunga tapu e tu kau 
atu ki te hau tonga.

puta atu ki a Waikato 
Runga, ka rere ka puta ki 
te whatu i te korowai tapu 
ko taupo Moana. ara te 
ia	e	ū	atu	ki	a	Waikato-
nui	me	tōna	kī;	“He	piko,	
he taniwha, he piko, he 
taniwha”.  anei te mana o 
te wai.

Heemi is of Ngati 
tuwharetoa descent and 
whakapapa to Ngati tahu, 
te arawa, Ngati Raukawa, 
Ngai tuhoe and other hapu 
and iwi of the central 
North island.

His career has seen him 
involved in a number 
of industries including 
forestry, tunnelling, 
security, education, 
banking, and more 
recently, geothermal 
energy development.

He has a NZ certificate 
in Forestry, Bachelor of 
Business studies degree 
majoring in finance, and he 
has completed professional 
governance training in 
both australia and New 
Zealand. He is a current 
member of the tuwharetoa 
Maori trust Board and 
other current involvements 
include:

•	 Chairman	Tauhara 
Middle 15 trust

•	 Opepe	Farm	Trust

•	 Lake	Taupo	Forest	Trust

•	 Lake	Rotoaira	Forest	Trust

•	 Ngati	Tuwharetoa	
Fisheries

•	 Tuwharetoa	Hapu	Forum

Waikato River Authority Annual Report 2016
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Summary
of Attendance

July 2015
Waikato River Clean-up Trust – 9 July

Hon John luxton, tukoroirangi Morgan, Roger pikia, Jenni vernon, alan 
livingston, Heemi Biddle, peter Buckley, Weo Maag, vanessa eparaima,  
traci Houpapa

September 2015
Waikato River Clean-up Trust – 9 September

Hon John luxton, tukoroirangi Morgan, Roger pikia, Jenni vernon,  
Heemi Biddle, peter Buckley, Weo Maag, vanessa eparaima 

Apologies received from:
alan livingston, traci Houpapa

October 2015
Investment Committee – 8 October

Hon John luxton, Roger pikia, Jenni vernon, alan livingston, Heemi Biddle

Apologies received from:
tukoroirangi Morgan

November 2015
Waikato River Clean-up Trust – 25 November

Hon John luxton, tukoroirangi Morgan, Jenni vernon, alan livingston, Heemi 
Biddle, peter Buckley, Weo Maag, vanessa eparaima, traci Houpapa

Apologies received from:
Roger pikia

Annual General Meeting – 26 November

Hon John luxton, tukoroirangi Morgan, Roger pikia, Jenni vernon, alan 
livingston, Heemi Biddle, peter Buckley, Weo Maag, traci Houpapa

Apologies received from:
vanessa eparaima

December 2015
Investment Committee – 17 December

Hon John luxton, tukoroirangi Morgan, Roger pikia, Jenni vernon, alan 
livingston, Heemi Biddle

February 2016
Waikato River Clean-up Trust – 11 February

attended:

Hon John luxton, tukoroirangi Morgan, Roger pikia, Jenni vernon, alan 
livingston, Heemi Biddle, peter Buckley, Weo Maag, traci Houpapa

Apologies received from:
vanessa eparaima

March 2016
Presentation of Five Year Report – 22 March

Hon John luxton, tukoroirangi Morgan, Roger pikia, Jenni vernon, alan 
livingston, Heemi Biddle, peter Buckley, Weo Maag, vanessa eparaima,  
traci Houpapa

April 2016
Waikato River Clean-up Trust – 14 April

Hon John luxton,  tukoroirangi Morgan, Roger pikia, Jenni vernon,  
alan livingston, Heemi Biddle, peter Buckley, Weo Maag, traci Houpapa

Apologies received from:
vanessa eparaima

May 2016
Investment Committee – 19 May

Hon John luxton, tukoroirangi Morgan, Roger pikia, Jenni vernon,  
alan livingston 

Apologies received from:
Heemi Biddle

June 2016
Waikato River Clean-up Trust – 16 June

Hon John luxton, tukoroirangi Morgan, Roger pikia, Jenni vernon, alan 
livingston, Heemi Biddle, peter Buckley, Weo Maag, vanessa eparaima,  
traci Houpapa

Waikato River Authority Annual Report 2016

R
es

to
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

ct
in

g
 t

h
e 

h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

el
lb

ei
n

g
 o

f 
th

e 
W

ai
ka

to
 R

iv
er

16 17

w
w

w
.w

a
ik

a
to

ri
v

e
r.

o
rg

.n
z



w
w

w
.w

a
ik

a
to

ri
v

e
r.

o
rg

.n
z

Financial Statements of Waikato River Authority for the year ended 30 June 2016

Contents

Directory 19

Auditor’s	Report	-	WRA	 20-21

statement of comprehensive Revenue & expense 22

statement of Financial position 22

statement of changes in equity 23

statement of cash Flows 23

Notes	to	the	Financial	Statements	 24-31

Directory as at 30 June 2016

Nature of Business:	 Trustee	of	Waikato	River	Clean-up	Trust
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 Hamilton
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 Hamilton
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Rosemary Davison explains progress of the the Waipa Rerenoa project to other Waipa 
Catchment Committee members, Waikato Regional Council staff and councillors along 
with Otorohanga District Council and Waikato River Authority representatives.
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Waikato River Authority

Independent Auditor’s Report to the readers of  
Waikato river Authority’s financial statements 
for the year ended 30 june 2016

The	Auditor-General	is	the	auditor	of	Waikato	River	Authority	(the	Authority).	The	
Auditor-General	has	appointed	me,	B	H	Halford,	using	the	staff	and	resources	of	Audit	
New 	Zealand,	to	carry	out	the	audit	of	the	financial	statements	of	the	Authority	on	her	
behalf.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the authority on pages 22 to 31, that 
comprise	the	statement	of	financial	position	as	at	30 	June	2016,	the	statement	of	
comprehensive revenue and expense, statement of changes in equity and statement of 
cash flows for the year ended on that date and the notes to the financial statements that 
include accounting policies and other explanatory information.

in our opinion, the financial statements of the authority: 

•		present	fairly,	in	all	material	respects:	

 º		its	financial	position	as	at	30	 June	2016;	and

	 º		its	financial	performance	and	cash	flows	for	the	year	then	ended;	and

•		comply	with	generally	accepted	accounting	practice	in	New 	Zealand	and	have			 	
				been	prepared	in	accordance	with	Public	Benefit	Entity	Standards	with	reduced		 	
    disclosure requirements.

our audit was completed on 30 september 2016. this is the date at which our opinion is 
expressed.

the basis of our opinion is explained below. in addition, we outline the responsibilities of 
the trustees and our responsibilities, and explain our independence.

Basis of opinion

We	carried	out	our	audit	in	accordance	with	the	Auditor-General’s	Auditing	Standards,	
which	incorporate	the	International	Standards	on	Auditing	(New	 Zealand).	Those	
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and carry out our 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that, 
in our judgement, are likely to influence readers’ overall understanding of the financial 
statements. if we had found material misstatements that were not corrected, we would 
have referred to them in our opinion.

an audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. the procedures selected depend on our 
judgement, including our assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments, we consider 
internal control relevant to the preparation of the authority’s financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the authority’s internal control.

an audit also involves evaluating:

•		the	appropriateness	of	accounting	policies	used	and	whether	they	have	been	 
				consistently	applied;

•		the	reasonableness	of	the	significant	accounting	estimates	and	judgements	made	by			 
				the	Trustees;

•		the	adequacy	of	the	disclosures	in	the	financial	statements;	and

•		the	overall	presentation	of	the	financial	statements.

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of 
the	financial	statements.	Also,	we	did	not	evaluate	the	security	and	controls	over	the	
electronic	publication	of	the	financial	statements.

We	believe	we	have	obtained	sufficient	and	appropriate	audit	evidence	to	provide	a	basis	
for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of the Trustees

The	Trustees	are	responsible	for	the	preparation	and	fair	presentation	of	financial	
statements for the authority that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in 
New	Zealand	and	the	Public	Benefit	Entities	Accounting	Standards	Framework.

The	Trustees’	responsibilities	arise	from	the	Waikato-Tainui	Raupatu	Claims	(Waikato	
River)	Settlement	Act	2010	and	Ngati	Tuwharetoa,	Raukawa	and	Te	Arawa	River	Iwi	
Waikato River act 2010.

the trustees are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is 
necessary	to	enable	the	preparation	of	financial	statements	that	are	free	from	material	
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. the trustees are also responsible for the 
publication	of	the	financial	statements,	whether	in	printed	or	electronic	form.

Responsibilities of the Auditor

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements 
and reporting that opinion to you based on our audit. our responsibility arises from the 
public audit act 2001.

Independence

When carrying out the audit, we followed the independence requirements of the  
Auditor-General,	which	incorporate	the	independence	requirements	of	the	External	
Reporting Board.

other than the audit, we have no relationship with or interests in the authority.

B H Halford
Audit	New 	Zealand
On	behalf	of	the	Auditor-General
tauranga, New Zealand

Waikato River Authority Annual Report 2016
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Financial Statements of Waikato River Authority for the year ended 30 June 2016

Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended 30 june 2016

 Note 2016 2015

Cash flows from operating activities

government grants received  1,195,000    910,000

interest revenue received   16,305    6,844

payments to suppliers and employees         		(1,375,934)	 (874,387)

Net cash flows from operating activities         				(164,629)	 42,457

Net increase / (decrease) in cash, cash  
equivalents, and bank overdrafts	 	 (164,629)	 42,457	

cash, cash equivalents, and bank overdrafts  
at the beginning of the year             186,188    143,731  

Cash, cash equivalents, and bank overdrafts  
at the end of the year 8           21,559    186,188   

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Statement of Financial Position As at 30 june 2016

 Note 2016 2015

Assets

cash and cash equivalents 8  21,559   186,188

trade and other receivables 9         23,410   19,684

Total current assets          44,969   205,872

Total assets          44,969  205,872

Liabilities

trade and other payables 10         17,909  31,027

Total current liabilities          17,909   31,027

Total liabilities           17,909  31,027

Net assets         27,060    174,845

Equity

Retained earnings 11         27,060 174,845

Total equity          27,060   174,845

Tukoroirangi Morgan  Hon John Luxton
co-chair	 	 co-chair

30 September 2016

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Statement of Comprehensive Revenue & Expense  
For the year ended 30 june 2016 

 Note 2016 2015

Revenue

government grants 5  1,195,000   910,000 

Finance revenue          15,524   7,479

total revenue  1,210,524 917,479

Expenses

Grant	to	Trust	 5	 (1,075,488)	 (623,950)

Other	expenses	 6	 (280,081)	 (236,428)

personnel costs 7       	 (2,740)	 - 

total expenses        	(1,358,309)	 (860,378)

Surplus / (Deficit) for the period  (147,785)	 57,101

Other comprehensive revenue & expense   -     -   

Total comprehensive revenue & expense for the period 	 (147,785)	 57,101

Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 30 june 2016

  Retained total  
  earnings equity

Balance as at 1 July 2014   117,744   117,744

Total comprehensive revenue & expense for the period

Surplus	/	(Deficit)	for	the	period	 											 57,101 57,101

Total comprehensive revenue & expense for the period      57,101 57,101

Balance as at 30 June 2015               174,845 174,845 

Balance as at 1 July 2015   174,845   174,845 

Total comprehensive revenue & expense for the period

Surplus	/	(Deficit)	for	the	period	 	 (147,785)		 (147,785)

Total comprehensive revenue & expense for the period (147,785)	 (147,785)

Balance as at 30 June 2016               27,060   27,060 
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 june 2016 

1 Reporting entity

	 The	Waikato	River	Authority	(the	“Authority”)	has	been	established	by	virtue	of	the	
provision	of	section	22(1)	of	the	Waikato-Tainui	Raupatu	Claims	(Waikato	River)	
Settlement	Act	2010	and	section	23	(1)	of	the	Ngati	Tuwharetoa,	Raukawa,	and	
te arawa River iwi Waikato River act 2010. these financial statements have been 
prepared	in	accordance	with	the	schedule	5	of	the	Waikato-Tainui	Raupatu	Claims	
(Waikato	River)	Settlement	Act	2010.

 the authority has been established to restore and protect the health and wellbeing 
of the Waikato River for future generations. accordingly the authority has designated 
itself	as	a	public	benefit	entity	(“PBE”)	for	financial	reporting	purposes.

 the financial statements are for the year ended 30 June 2016. the financial 
statements were approved by the trustees on the 30th of september 2016.

2 Basis of preparation

a) Going concern

 the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, and the 
accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the period.

b)  Statement of compliance

 the financial statements of the authority have been prepared in accordance with 
New	Zealand	Generally	Accepted	Accounting	Practice	(“NZ	GAAP”).	

 the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply 
with tier 2 pBe accounting standards. the authority is eligible to report under 
tier 3 as it is not defined as a large entity, has no public accountability, and has 
expenses less than $2 million, but has elected to comply with tier 2 reporting in 
line	with	the	Waikato	River	Clean-up	Trust	(the	“Trust”).	The	Authority	has	taken	
advantage of all Reduced Disclosure Regime disclosure concessions.

c)  Basis of measurement

 the financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

d)  Presentation currency and rounding

	 These	financial	statements	are	presented	in	New	Zealand	dollars	($),	all	values	
are rounded to the nearest dollar.

e)  Use of estimates and judgements

 the preparation of financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses.  
actual results may differ from these estimates. estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future 
periods affected.

3  Significant accounting policies

 a)  Financial instruments 

  i)   Non-derivative financial instruments

	 Non-derivative	financial	instruments	comprise	investments	in	term	deposits,	
trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other 
payables.

	 Non-derivative	financial	instruments	are	recognised	initially	at	fair	value,	
plus, for instruments not at fair value through statement of comprehensive 
Revenue & expense, any directly attributable transaction costs. subsequent 
to	initial	recognition,	non-derivative	financial	instruments	are	measured	as	
described below.

 a financial instrument is recognised if the authority becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised 
if the authority’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
assets expire or if the authority transfers the financial asset to another 
party without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the 
asset.  purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date, 
i.e., the date that the authority commits itself to purchase or sell the asset.  
Financial liabilities are derecognised if the authority’s obligations specified 
in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled. 

 Cash and cash equivalents 

 cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and other 
highly liquid invetsments with maturities of three months or less. Bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the 
authority’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash 
equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash Flows.

   Trade receivables 

    trade receivables are recorded at their face value, less any provision for 
impairment.

 Trade payables

  trade payables are recorded at their face value.

 Loans and receivables

		 Loans	and	receivables	are	non-derivative	financial	assets	with	fixed	or	
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. they are 
included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after 
balance	date,	which	are	included	in	non-current	assets.

b)  Impairment

 the carrying amounts of the authority’s assets are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. 
an impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. impairment losses directly reduce the carrying 
amount of assets and are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

 i)  Impairment of loans and receivables

 impairment losses on an individual basis are determined by an evaluation 
of the exposures on an instrument by instrument basis. all individual 
instruments that are considered significant are subject to this approach. 

 For trade receivables which are not significant on an individual basis, 
collective impairment is assessed on a portfolio basis based on numbers 
of days overdue, and taking into account the historical loss experience in 
portfolios with a similar amount of days overdue.

 the recoverable amount of the authority’s loans and receivables carried at 
amortised cost is calculated as the present value of estimated future cash 
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective 
interest	rate	computed	at	initial	recognition	of	these	financial	assets).		
Receivables with short duration are not discounted.

 if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases 
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is 
reversed. the reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial 
asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the 
impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. the 
amount of the reversal is recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
Revenue & expense.     
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Financial Statements of Waikato River Authority for the year ended 30 June 2016

3  Significant accounting policies (continued)

 c)  Revenue

  Revenue is measured at fair value. Revenue may be derived from either exchange 
or	non-exchange	transactions.

 Exchange transactions 

 exchange transactions are transactions where the Waikato River authority 
receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives 
approximately equal value to another entity in exchange.

 Waikato River authority receives the following exchange revenue streams:

i)  Interest 

 interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method.

Non-exchange transactions

 these are all other transactions which are not exchange transactions. 

	 The	Authority	receives	the	following	non-exchange	revenue	streams:

i)  Government grants

  grants received from the government are the primary source of funding to 
the authority and are restricted for the purposes of the authority meeting 
its	objectives	as	specified	in	the	Waikato-Tainui	Raupatu	Claims	(Waikato	
River)	Settlement	Act	2010.	Government	grants	are	recognised	as	revenue	
when they become receivable unless there is an obligation to return the 
funds if conditions of the grant are not met. if there is such an obligation, the 
grants are initially recorded as grants received in advance and recognised as 
revenue when conditions of the grant are satisfied.

d)  Lease payments 

 payments made under operating leases are recognised in surplus or deficit on a 
straight-line	basis	over	the	term	of	the	lease.

operating leases are not recognised on the authority’s balance sheet

e)  Finance revenue and expenses 

 Finance revenue comprises interest revenue on funds invested, dividend revenue 
and	gains	on	the	disposal	of	available-for-sale	financial	assets.	Interest	revenue	
is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.  Dividend 
revenue is recognised on the date that the authority’s right to receive payment is 
established.

 Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of 
discount on provisions, changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value 
through surplus or deficit and impairment losses recognised on financial assets 
(except	for	trade	receivables).

f)  Income tax  

	 In	accordance	with	section	CW	41(5)(a)	of	the	Income	Tax	Act	2007	the	Authority	
has	been	granted	exemption	from	income	tax	as	outlined	in	section	32(5)	of	
the	Waikato-Tainui	Raupatu	Claims	(Waikato	River)	Settlement	Act	2010.		The	
authority has been granted charitable status by the charities commission and is 
registered as a charity.

g)  Goods and Service Tax

 the entity is not registered for gst purposes and therefore the financial 
statements have been prepared on a gst inclusive basis.

4  Determination of fair values        

  a number of the authority’s accounting policies and disclosures require the 
determination	of	fair	value,	for	both	financial	and	non-financial	assets	and	liabilities.		
Where applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining 
fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.        

5  Government grants

  2016  2015

government grant received   1,195,000  910,000 

   1,195,000  910,000 

 the crown provides $910,000 directly to the authority to cover reasonable 
operational costs for the  authority and trust. in 2016, an additional $285,000 was 
granted for the production of the Five Year Report. the authority has received and 
recognised this revenue and has decided to fund $1,075,488 worth of operational 
expenses	of	the	Trust	(2015:	$623,950).							

 accordingly, these transactions have been recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive Revenue & expense. the payment of trust expenses has been 
recorded as a grant payment to the trust.       

6  Other expenses

 Note  2016  2015
Other expenses include: 

accounting fees   44,246    34,570 

Audit	fees	-	current	year		 	 16,041				 15,675	

Audit	fees	-	prior	year		 	 231				 117	

consultant and contractor fees   129,989    124,666 

trustees’ fees  15   4,720    4,424 

trustees’ and governance expenses  15   965    1,406 

operating leases  13   3,974  3,974 

other operating expenses          79,916  51,596 

          280,081  236,428 

7  Personnel Costs 

  2016  2015

staffing wages         	 2,740				 - 
 
        	 2,740				 -	  

8  Cash and cash equivalents   

        

         2016  2015

        

Bank balances                21,559    186,188 

 total cash and cash equivalents in the  
statement of cash Flows                21,559    186,188 

        

 Fair value       

		 The	carrying	value	of	cash	at	bank	and	short-term	deposits	with	maturities	less	than	
three months approximates their fair value. 
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9  Trade and other receivables 

  2016  2015

Receivables from exchange transactions:       

Prepayments	 	 							-						 17,365	

interest accrual   38 819 

other trade receivables         23,372  1,500 

          23,410  19,684 

 Fair value

	 Trade	and	other	receivables	are	non-interest	bearing	and	receipt	is	normally	on	 
30-day	terms.	Therefore,	the	carrying	value	of	trade	and	other	receivables	
approximates their fair value. 

10  Trade and other payables       

  2016  2015

Payables from exchange transactions:       

other trade payables         8,768    22,252 

Non-trade	payables	and	accrued	expenses								 							 9,141    8,775 

          17,909    31,027 

 Fair value       

	 Trade	and	other	payables	are	non-interest	bearing	and	are	normally	settled	on	 
30-day	terms.	Therefore,	the	carrying	value	of	trade	and	other	payables	
approximates their fair value. 

11  Equity       

 the authority’s capital is its equity, which is comprised of retained earnings. equity is 
represented by net assets.             

 the authority manages its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and general 
financing dealings prudently.  the authority’s equity is largely managed as a  
by-product	of	managing	revenue,	expenses,	assets,	liabilities,	and	compliance	with	
the Board’s instructions.              

 the objective of managing the authority’s equity is to ensure that the authority 
effectively achieves its goals and objectives for which it has been established.       

12   Financial instruments

Classification and fair values

     other  total   
   loans and  amortised  carrying Fair 
  receivables  cost amount value 
 Note 2016 2016 2016 2016

Financial assets

Trade	and	other	receivables	 9	 23,410				 -	 23,410	 23,410	

cash and cash equivalents 8 21,559		 		-				 21,559			 	21,559	

total current financial assets   44,969				 -				 44,969				 44,969	

total financial assets   44,969				 -				 44,969				 44,969	

Financial liabilities

trade and other payables  10          	 -				 17,909				 17,909				 17,909 

total current financial liabilities              	 -				 17,909				 17,909				 17,909 

total financial liabilities             		 -				 17,909				 17,909				 17,909	

     other  total   
   loans and  amortised  carrying Fair 
  receivables  cost amount value 
 Note 2015 2015 2015 2015

Financial assets     

Trade	and	other	receivables		 9			 19,684				 -				 19,684				 19,684	

cash and cash equivalents  8   186,188				 -				 186,188				 186,188	

total current financial assets     205,872				 -				 205,872				 205,872	

total financial assets     205,872			 	-				 205,872				 205,872	

Financial liabilities

trade and other payables  10        			 -				 31,027				 31,027				 31,027	

total current financial liabilities            	 -				 31,027				 31,027				 31,027	 

total financial liabilities            		 -				 31,027				 31,027				 31,027	

13 Operating leases

 Leases as lessee

	 Non-cancellable	operating	lease	rentals	are	payable	as	follows:

  2016  2015

Not later than one year  994  3,974 

Later	than	one	year	and	not	later	than	five	years		 	 -					 994	

994 4,968
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Financial Statements of Waikato River Authority for the year ended 30 June 2016

 the authority leases equipment under an operating lease. the lease runs for a period 
of four years.

  the authority does not have the option to purchase the asset at the end of the lease 
term.

there are no restrictions placed on the authority by any of the leasing arrangements.

14 Capital commitments

As	at	30	June	2016,	the	Authority	had	no	capital	commitments	(2015:	Nil).

15 Related parties

  Related party disclosures have not been made for transactions with related parties 
that are within a normal supplier or client/recipient relationship on terms and 
condition no more or less favourable than those that it is reasonable to expect the 
authority and trust would have adopted in dealing with the party at arm’s length in 
the same circumstances.

  Related party disclosures have also not been made for transactions with entities 
within	the	group	(such	as	funding	and	financing	flows),	where	the	transactions	are	
consistent with the normal operating relationships between the entities and are on 
normal terms and conditions for such group transactions.

 Transactions with key management personnel including Trustees

 Key management personnel compensation comprised:

 Note 2016  2015
 Trustee fees

	-	H	Biddle	 Iwi	appointee		 	 456			 456	

	-	P	Buckley	 Crown	appointee		 	 456			 456	

	-	A	Livingston	 Crown	appointee		 	 456		 	456	

	-	Hon.	J	Luxton	 Crown	appointee		 	 730			 730	

	-	T	Morgan	 Iwi	appointee		 	 730			 730	

	-	R	Pikia	 Iwi	appointee		 	 456			 456	

	-	J	Vernon	 Crown	appointee		 	 456			 456	

-	W	Maag	 Iwi	appointee		 	 456			 456	

-	T	Houpapa 1	 Crown	appointee		 	 524			 -			

-	V	Eparaima	 Iwi	appointee		 	 -					 228	

   6  4,720   4,424 

 Trustee expenses

	-	H	Biddle		 	 	 127			 91	

-		P	Buckley		 	 	 49			 325	

-	A	Livingston		 	 	 145			 231	

	-	T	Morgan		 	 	 102			 237	

	-	R	Pikia		 	 	 37			 124	

	-	J	Vernon		 	 	 116			 80	

-	W	Maag		 	 	 241			 205	

-	T	Houpapa1    147   113 

   6  964   1,406 

  total paid to trustees  5,684   5,830 

Contractor	expenses	(1	FTE)		 	 	 78,415   70,404 

Total key management personnel compensation   84,099   76,234  

1 Trustee fees and expenses for T Houpapa are on a GST inclusive basis.

  Key management personnel have not entered into any transactions with the 
authority other than the above.

  all transactions and outstanding balances with these related parties are priced on 
an arm’s length basis and are to be settled in cash within six months of the reporting 
date. None of the balances are secured.

  No provision has been required, nor any expenses recognised for impairment of 
receivables,	for	any	loans	or	other	receivables	to	related	paries	(2015:	Nil).

16 Contingent liabilities

  as at 30 June 2016, the authority had no contingent liabilities to disclose  
	 (2015:	Nil). 
 
17  Subsequent events

		 As	at	30	June	2016,	the	Authority	had	no	subsequent	events	to	disclose	(2015:	Nil).
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  protect and restore the health and  
wellbeing of the Waikato River 
for future generations    

Waikato River Authority co-chair Tukoroirangi Morgan addresses the launch for 
the Authority’s Five Year Report at the Waikato-Tainui College in March 2016.
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Waikato River Clean-up Trust

Independent Auditor’s Report to the readers of
Waikato river clean-up trust’s financial statements  
for the year ended 30 june 2016

 
The	Auditor-General	is	the	auditor	of	Waikato	River	Clean-up	Trust	(the	Trust).	The	
Auditor-General	has	appointed	me,	B	H	Halford,	using	the	staff	and	resources	of	Audit	
New Zealand, to carry out the audit of the financial statements of the trust on her 
behalf.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the trust on pages 36 to 56, that comprise 
the	statement	of	financial	position	as	at	30 	June	2016,	the	statement	of	comprehensive	
revenue and expense, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows 
for the year ended on that date and the notes to the financial statements that include 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

in our opinion, the financial statements of the trust: 

•		present	fairly,	in	all	material	respects:	

 º		its	financial	position	as	at	30	 June	2016;	and

 º		its	financial	performance	and	cash	flows	for	the	year	then	ended;	and

•		comply	with	generally	accepted	accounting	practice	in	New	Zealand	and	have	been	 
				prepared	in	accordance	with	Public	Benefit	Entity	Standards	with	reduced	disclosure	 
    requirements.

our audit was completed on 30 september 2016. this is the date at which our opinion is 
expressed.

the basis of our opinion is explained below. in addition, we outline the responsibilities 
of the trustees and our responsibilities, and explain our independence.

Basis of opinion

We	carried	out	our	audit	in	accordance	with	the	Auditor-General’s	Auditing	Standards,	
which	incorporate	the	International	Standards	on	Auditing	(New	Zealand).	Those	
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and carry out our 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that, 
in our judgement, are likely to influence readers’ overall understanding of the financial 
statements. if we had found material misstatements that were not corrected, we would 
have referred to them in our opinion.

an audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. the procedures selected depend on our 
judgement, including our assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments, we 
consider internal control relevant to the preparation of the trust’s financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the trust’s internal control.

an audit also involves evaluating:

•		the appropriateness of accounting policies used and whether they have been  
				consistently	applied;

•		the reasonableness of the significant accounting estimates and judgements made by  
				the	Trustees;

 
•		the	adequacy	of	the	disclosures	in	the	financial	statements;	and

•		the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of 
the financial statements. also, we did not evaluate the security and controls over the 
electronic publication of the financial statements.

We believe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of the Trustees

the trustees are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements for the trust that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New 
Zealand and the public Benefit entities accounting standards Framework.

The	Trustees’	responsibilities	arise	from	the	Waikato-Tainui	Raupatu	Claims	(Waikato	
River)	Settlement	Act	2010	and	Ngati	Tuwharetoa,	Raukawa	and	Te	Arawa	River	Iwi	
Waikato River act 2010.

the trustees are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. the trustees are also responsible for the 
publication of the financial statements, whether in printed or electronic form.

Responsibilities of the Auditor

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements 
and reporting that opinion to you based on our audit. our responsibility arises from the 
public audit act 2001.

Independence

When carrying out the audit, we followed the independence requirements of the  
Auditor-General,	which	incorporate	the	independence	requirements	of	the	External	
Reporting Board.

other than the audit, we have no relationship with or interests in the trust.

B H Halford
audit New Zealand
On	behalf	of	the	Auditor-General
tauranga, New Zealand
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

*Subject to the Waikato-Tainui Raupatu Claims (Waikato River) Settlement Act 2010 the Trust is to receive settlement funds of 

$210,000,000 over 27 years (22 years remaining). Additional settlement funds of $10,000,000 will be received over 27 years 

(22 years remaining) under the Nga Wai o Manipoto (Waipa River) Act 2012.  Refer to note 11 for further details.  

Statement of Financial Position As at 30 june 2016

 Note 2016 2015

Assets

cash and cash equivalents 9  13,073,179   21,919,678 

trade and other receivables 10  2,728   77,257 

Funding receivable  11 6,922,174  6,922,174 

gst   230,102   233,162 

other financial assets  12       601,733   5,141,276 

Total current assets   20,829,916   34,293,547 

Funding receivable  11  81,883,285   83,832,026 

property, plant and equipment 13  918,586 929,053 

intangible assets  14  24,620   27,697 

other financial assets  12      38,297,038   20,469,352 

Total non-current assets   121,123,526   105,258,128 

Total assets      141,953,445   139,551,675 

Liabilities

trade and other payables 15  1,013,707   1,082,547 

provisions 16       2,314,662   1,857,388 

total current liabilities        3,328,369   2,939,935 

Total liabilities        3,328,369   2,939,935  
 

Equity

Retained earnings 17   137,175,930    134,686,139 

Revaluation reserves 17        1,449,146     1,925,601 

Total equity  138,625,076  136,611,740  

Tukoroirangi Morgan  Hon John Luxton 
co-chair  co-chair

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Statement of Comprehensive Revenue & Expense 
For the year ended 30 june 2016

 Note 2016 2015

Revenue

Settlement	funds*	 	 -	 	-

other revenue 5  1,521,091  915,921 

Finance revenue 6        6,287,839   6,911,276

Total revenue  7,808,930 7,827,197

Expenses

Depreciation	 13	 (41,505)	 	(36,958)

Amortisation	 14	 (3,077)	 (2,852)

Other	expenses	 7	 (1,388,572)	 (1,199,711)

grants payments 8      	 (3,885,985)	 (3,881,376)

Total expenses	 	 (5,319,139)	 (5,120,897)

Surplus / (Deficit) for the period    2,489,791  2,706,300

Other comprehensive revenue & expense   

Gain	/	(loss)	on	investment	revaluations	        	 (476,455)			 1,404,028

Total other comprehensive revenue & expense       	 (476,455)			 1,404,028

Total comprehensive revenue &  
expense for the period     2,013,336   4,110,328

Net assets   138,625,076   136,611,740

30 September 2016
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended 30 june 2016

 Note 2016 2015

Cash flows from operating activities

settlement funds received     7,333,000    7,333,000

capital gain on sale of investment     358,117    13,897

GST	(net)				 	 674,272				 845,070		

interest revenue received      785,124    1,231,445  

Dividend revenue received     442,000    288,750  

Payments	to	suppliers				 	 (490,285)		 (768,314)	

grant payments        	 (3,998,210)		 (3,916,369)

Net cash flows from operating activities         5,104,018    5,027,479 

Cash flows from investing activities

Disposal of investments proceeds     4,063,088    4,027,537 

Purchase	of	investments			 	 (17,994,910)	 	(5,281,450)

purchase of property, plant, and equipment        	 (18,695)		 (53,276)

Net cash flows from investing activities    (13,950,517)		 (1,307,189)

   

Net increase / (decrease) in cash,  
cash equivalents, and bank overdrafts    (8,846,499)		 3,720,290

Cash, cash equivalents, and bank overdrafts  
at the beginning of the year           21,919,678    18,199,388

Cash, cash equivalents, and bank overdrafts  
at the end of the year  9      13,073,179    21,919,678

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 30 june 2016

 Revaluation Retained total 
 reserves earnings equity

Balance as at 1 July 2014   521,573    131,979,839 132,501,412 

Total comprehensive revenue  
& expense for the period   

Surplus	/	(Deficit)	for	the	period			 -						 2,706,300	 2,706,300	

other comprehensive revenue  
& expense   1,404,028				 	 -					1,404,028	

Total comprehensive revenue  
& expense for the period   1,404,028    2,706,300 4,110,328 

Balance at 30 June 2015   1,925,601    134,686,139    136,611,740

  
Balance as at 1 July 2015   1,925,601    134,686,139    136,611,740 

Total comprehensive revenue  
& expense for the period   

Surplus	/	(Deficit)	for	the	period			 -					 2,489,791		 2,489,791

other comprehensive revenue  
& expense  (476,455)		 	-					 (476,455)

Total comprehensive revenue  
& expense for the period  (476,455)		 2,489,791		 2,013,336

Balance at 30 June 2016   1,449,146    137,175,930    138,625,076
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended 30 june 2016

1 Reporting entity

	 The	Waikato	River	Clean-up	Trust	(the	“Trust”)	has	been	established	by	virtue	of	the	
provision	of	section	32	(2)	of	the	Waikato-Tainui	Raupatu	Claims	(Waikato	River)	
Settlement	Act	2010	and	section	33	(2)	of	the	Ngati	Tuwharetoa,	Raukawa,	and	 
te arawa River iwi Waikato River act 2010.  these financial statements have been 
prepared	in	accordance	with	schedule	6	of	the	Waikato-Tainui	Raupatu	Claims	
(Waikato	River)	Settlement	Act	2010.	Further	legislation	has	been	enacted	on	the	5th	
of april 2012 and the trust has to meet its obligations in accordance with the Nga 
Wai	o	Maniapoto	(Waipa	River)	Act	2012	from	the	Act’s	establishment.

 the trust has been established to restore and protect the health and wellbeing of the 
Waikato River for future generations. accordingly the trust has designated itself as a 
public	benefit	entity	(“PBE”)	for	financial	reporting	purposes.

 the financial statements are for the year ended 30 June 2016.

 the financial statements were approved by the trustee on the 30th of september 
2016.

2 Basis of preparation

a)  Going concern

   the financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, and the 
accounting policies have been applied consistently throughout the period.

 b)  Statement of compliance

 the financial statements of the trust have been prepared in accordance with New 
Zealand	Generally	Accepted	Accounting	Practice	(“NZ	GAAP”).	

 the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with 
tier 2 pBe accounting standards. the trust is eligible to report under tier 2 as it 
is not defined as a large entity and has no public accountability but has expenses 
over $2 million. 

 the trust has taken advantage of all Reduced Disclosure Regime disclosure 
concessions. 

 c)  Basis of measurement  

   the financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except 
where modified by the revaluation of certain financial instruments. 

 d)  Presentation currency and rounding  

			 These	financial	statements	are	presented	in	New	Zealand	dollars	($)	and	all	
values are rounded to the nearest dollar. 

 e)  Use of estimates and judgements  

   the preparation of financial statements requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses.  
actual results may differ from these estimates.

   estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.  
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

3 Significant accounting policies

a)  Financial instruments         

i)		 Non-derivative	financial	instruments								

	 Non-derivative	financial	instruments	comprise	investments	in	term	deposits,	
trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other 
payables.        

	 Non-derivative	financial	instruments	are	recognised	initially	at	fair	
value, plus, for instruments not at fair value, they are recognised through 
the statement of comprehensive Revenue & expense with any directly 
attributable	transaction	costs.	Subsequent	to	initial	recognition	non-
derivative financial instruments are measured as described below.         

 a financial instrument is recognised if the trust becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised 
if the trust’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets 
expire or if the trust transfers the financial asset to another party without 
retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset.  purchases 
and sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e., the date that 
the trust commits itself to purchase or sell the asset.  Financial liabilities are 
derecognised if the trust’s obligations specified in the contract expire or are 
discharged or cancelled.        

 Cash and cash equivalents

 cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and other 
highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less.  Bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the 
trust’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash 
equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash Flows.   

 Fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense/available for sale        

 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive revenue and 
expense / available for sale are those that are designated into the category at 
initial recognition or are not classified in any of the other categories above. 
They	are	included	in	non-current	assets	unless	management	intends	to	
dispose of, or realise, the investment within 12 months of balance date. the 
trust includes in this category:

•	 investments	that	it	intends	to	hold	long-term	but	which	may	be	realised	
before	maturity;	and

•	 shareholdings that it holds for strategic purposes.

 these investments are measured at their fair value, with gains and losses 
recognised in other comprehensive revenue, except for impairment losses, 
which are recognised in surplus or deficit. the gain or loss does not include 
interest or dividend income.

 on derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other 
comprehensive revenue is reclassified from equity to surplus or deficit.

 Trade receivables         

 trade receivables are recorded at their face value, less any provision for 
impairment.        

 Trade payables        

 trade payables are recorded at their face value.        

 Loans and receivables        

	 Loans	and	receivables	are	non-derivative	financial	assets	with	fixed	or	
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. they are 
included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after 
balance	date,	which	are	included	in	non-current	assets.								

 b)    Impairment        

 the carrying amounts of the trust’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet 
date to determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.  
an impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount. impairment losses directly reduce the 
carrying amount of assets and are recognised in surplus or deficit.        

	 i)				Impairment	of	loans	and	receivables							

 impairment losses on an individual basis are determined by an evaluation 
of the exposures on an instrument by instrument basis. all individual 
instruments that are considered significant are subject to this approach.       
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 For trade receivables which are not significant on an individual basis, collective 
impairment is assessed on a portfolio basis based on numbers of days overdue, 
and taking into account the historical loss experience in portfolios with a similar 
amount of days overdue.       

 the recoverable amount of the trust’s loans and receivables carried at amortised 
cost is calculated as the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted 
at the original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at 
initial	recognition	of	these	financial	assets).		Receivables	with	short	duration	are	
not discounted.       

 if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the 
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment 
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed.  the 
reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds 
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been 
recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.  the amount of the reversal is 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive Revenue & expense.       

ii)			Impairment	of	property,	plant	and	equipment	and	intangible	assets							

 property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets that have a finite 
useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. an 
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. the recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.       

 value in use is depreciated replacement cost for an asset where the future 
economic benefits or service potential of the asset are not primarily 
dependent on the asset’s ability to generate net cash inflows and where the 
trust would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining future economic 
benefits or service potential.       

 if an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 
is	impaired	and	the	carrying	amount	is	written-down	to	the	recoverable	
amount. For revalued assets, the impairment loss is recognised in other 
comprehensive revenue & expense to the extent that the impairment loss 
does not exceed the amount in the revaluation reserve in equity for that class 
of asset. Where that results in a debit balance in the revaluation reserve, the 
balance is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

 For assets not carried at a revalued amount, the total impairment loss is 
recognised in the surplus or deficit.

 the reversal of an impairment loss on a revalued asset is credited to other 
comprehensive revenue and increases the asset revaluation reserve for that 
class of asset. However, to the extent that an impairment loss for that class 
of asset was previously recognised in the surplus or deficit, a reversal of the 
impairment loss is also recognised in the surplus or deficit.

 For assets not carried at a revalued amount, the reversal of an impairment 
loss is recognised in the surplus or deficit.

 c)  Revenue        

 Revenue is measured at fair value. Revenue may be derived from either exchange 
or	non-exchange	transactions.

Exchange transactions        

 exchange transactions are transactions where the trust receives assets or 
services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal 
value to another entity in exchange.        

 the trust receives the following exchange revenue streams:        

i)		 Interest	and	dividends							

 interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method.       

 Dividends are recognised when the trust’s right to receive the payment is 
established.        

ii)		 Services									

  Revenue from services rendered is recognised in surplus or deficit in 
proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting 
date. the stage of completion is measured with reference to the project 
milestones.        

Non-exchange transactions         

 these are all transactions that are not exchange transactions. 

	 The	Trust	receives	the	following	non-exchange	revenue	streams:									

i)		 Government	grants						

 grants received from the government are the primary source of funding 
to the trust and are restricted for the purposes of the trust meeting its 
objectives	as	specified	in	the	Waikato-Tainui	Raupatu	Claims	(Waikato	River)	
settlement act 2010. government grants are recognised as revenue when 
they become receivable unless there is an obligation to return the funds 
if conditions of the grant are not met. if there is such an obligation, the 
grants are initially recorded as grants received in advance and recognised as 
revenue when conditions of the grant are satisfied.          

 settlement grants are measured at the present value of the revenue expected 
to	be	required	to	settle	the	obligation	using	a	pre-tax	discount	rate	that	
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the obligation. the increase in the settlement grants due to the 
passage of time is recognised in finance revenue.        

ii)		 Unwind	discount	on	funding	receivable

 the increase in the government settlement grants due to the passage of 
time is recognised in finance revenue as an unwind discount on funding 
receivable.

 d)  Finance revenue and expenses         

 Finance revenue comprises interest revenue on funds invested, dividend revenue 
and	gains	on	the	disposal	of	available-for-sale	financial	assets.	Interest	revenue	
is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.  Dividend 
revenue is recognised on the date that the trust’s right to receive payment is 
established.          

 Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of 
discount on provisions, changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value 
through surplus or deficit and impairment losses recognised on financial assets 
(except	for	trade	receivables).											

 e) Grant expenditure         

 grants are those grants awarded if the grant application meets the specified 
criteria and have been approved by the Board. these are recognised as 
expenditure based on the deliverables and timeframe set out in the signed 
funding deeds.         

 all grants will be recognised as an expenses when a milestone is met, including a 
provision for costs incurred between milestones. grants that are not recognised 
are recorded as funding commitments.         

 For grants under $50,000, an 80% payment is made upfront and the remaining 
is paid on completion of the project. grants over $50,000 require evidence of 
deliverables completed before payment is made.         

f)  Property, plant and equipment         

   property, plant, and equipment consists of the following asset classes: motor 
vehicles, office equipment, furniture & fittings, buildings and land.

 the asset classes are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses.        

 Additions 

 the cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment is recognised as an asset 
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only when it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the item will flow to the trust and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably.       

 in most instances, an item of property, plant, and equipment is initially 
recognised at its cost. Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, 
it is recognised at its fair value as at the date of acquisition.       

 Disposals

 gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with 
the carrying amount of the asset. gains and losses on disposals are reported net 
in the surplus or deficit.

 Subsequent costs 

 costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the 
item will flow to the trust and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.         

	 The	costs	of	day-to-day	servicing	of	property,	plant,	and	equipment	are	
recognised in surplus or deficit as they are incurred.

 Depreciation

	 Depreciation	is	provided	on	a	straight-line	basis	on	all	property,	plant,	and	
equipment	other	than	land,	at	rates	that	will	write-off	the	cost	of	the	assets	
to their estimated residual values over their useful lives. the useful lives and 
associated depreciation rates of major classes of property, plant, and equipment 
have been estimated as follows:         

	 Office	equipment				 	1.5	to	5.7	years			 17.5%-67%			

	 Building			 	14.2	to	50	years			 2%-7%			

	 Furniture	&	fittings			 	 9.5	years			 10.5-21%			

 Motor vehicle    4.7 years   21.0%   

 the residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed, and adjusted if 
applicable, at each financial year end.

g)  Intangible assets 

 Software acquisition and development 

 acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs 
incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.

 costs that are directly associated with the development of software for internal 
use are recognised as an intangible asset. Direct costs include the software 
development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.         

 staff training costs are recognised in surplus or deficit when incurred.         

 costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an 
expense when incurred. 

 Amortisation 

 the carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a 
straight-line	basis	over	its	useful	life.									

 amortisation begins when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date 
that the asset is derecognised.         

 the amortisation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit.         

  the useful lives and associated amortisation rates of major classes of intangible 
assets have been estimated as follows:       

 Management software      10 years   10% 

h)  Impairment of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets       

   intangible assets subsequently measured at cost that have an indefinite useful 
life, or are not yet available for use, and goodwill, are not subject to amortisation 
and are tested annually for impairment.

   property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are subsequently measured 

at cost that have a finite useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable.

 an impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying 
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. the recoverable amount is the higher of 
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.        

   if an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 
regarded	as	impaired	and	the	carrying	amount	is	written-down	to	the	recoverable	
amount. the total impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit. the reversal 
of an impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

 Value in use for non-cash-generating assets         

			 Non-cash-generating	assets	are	those	assets	that	are	not	held	with	the	primary	
objective of generating a commercial return.         

			 For	non-cash-generating	assets,	value	in	use	is	determined	using	an	approach	
based on either a depeciated replacement cost approach, restoration cost 
approach, or a service units approach. the most appropriate approach used to 
measure value in use depends on the nature of the impairment and availability of 
information. 

 Value in use for cash-generating assets         

	 Cash-generating	assets	are	those	assets	that	are	held	with	the	primary	objective	
of generating a commercial return.

	 The	value	in	use	for	cash-generating	assets	and	cash-generating	units	is	the	
present value of expected future cash flows.

i)  Provisions         

   a provision is recognised for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing 
when	there	is	a	present	obligation	(either	legal	or	constructive)	as	a	result	
of a past event, it is probable that expenditure will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

 provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to 
be	required	to	settle	the	obligation	using	a	pre-tax	discount	rate	that	reflects	
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the obligation. the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised in finance costs.

j)  Income tax         

			 In	accordance	with	schedule	5	of	Waikato-Tainui	Raupatu	Claims	(Waikato	River)	
settlement act 2010 the trust has been granted exemption from income tax.  
income tax act 2007 section cW 41 specifies non business revenue will be 
exempt from tax.  the trust has been granted charitable status by the charities 
commission and is registered as a charity.         

k)  Goods and Services Tax         

 all items are stated exclusive of gst except for receivables and payables, which 
are presented on a gst inclusive basis.   

 the gst paid to, or received from the iRD, including the gst relating to investing 
and financing activities, is classified as an operating cash flow in the statement 
of cash Flows.  

 commitments and contingencies are disclosed inclusive of gst.

l)  Critical accounting estimates and assumptions         

 in preparing these financial statements, the trust has made estimates and 
assumptions concerning the future.       

 these estimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual 
results. estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on 
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. the estimates and 
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 
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 trustees’ fees     20      160,469    57,660 

 trustees’ and governance expenses     20      6,787    8,231 

 other operating expenses            370,581 307,906

    1,388,572    1,199,711 

 8    Grants payments

  2016  2015

 3 Way charitable trust          1,250  3,382

 auckland/Waikato Fish and game           27,810    116,634 

	Cambridge	Tree	Trust						 	 				-						 870	

	Conservation	Volunteers	NZ						 		 			-						 21,993	

 Dairy NZ limited          647,322  233,962

	Department	of	Conservation									 	 (92,958)			 124,790	

	GHD	Limited								 	 		-					 27,718

 Hamilton city council          11,132  8,872

 K & K Butcher           7,593    1,765 

	Kerr	Farms	Limited									 		 6,674		 		-			

 landcare Reseach ltd           23,813    3,151 

	Landcorp	Farming	Limited										 	 10,967			 	-			

	Lewisridge	Farms	Limited									 		 69,565			 	-			

 lincoln University           58,110    3,581 

	Lower	Mangapiko	Stream	Care	Group										 	 30,844	 -		

 Mangakotukutuku stream care group           37,704    15,838 

 Maniapoto Maori trust Board           58,515    108,668 

	National	Wetland	Trust	of	NZ	Inc									 	 58,800	 (4,884)

 Nga Uri a Maahanga           1,500  12,250

 Ngaati Haua Mahi trust           116,770    307,307 

	Ngaati	Tahu-Ngaati	Whaoa	Runanga	Trust									 	 19,545		 4,027

 Nikau Farm estate trust           104,557    25,852 

 NiWa           199,429    9,591 

	NIWA-Waikato	Raupatu	River	Trust									 	 15,975		 478,243

 NJ & M Williams           61,887    37,829 

 NZ Farm environment trust           522    12,000 

	NZ	Landacre	Trust	and	WRRT										 	 -						 31,450	

 NZ landcare trust          1,646  58,691

 opus international consultants ltd           7,565    17,601 

 otorohanga District council           2,914    44,392 

 pukeroa Hangatiki a55 trust           14,091    29,936 

 Queen elizabeth ii National trust           27,540    11,894 

	Raukawa	Charitable	Trust									 	 	-				 	53,660

 sMp Muir           56,696   42,609 

	Solid	Energy	NZ	Ltd										 	 8,839			 	-			

	Solid	Energy	NZ	Ltd	&	Waahi	Whanui	Trust									 	 (8)		 72,111

discussed below: 

	 i)		 Settlement	funds	and	funding	receivable						
                   Refer to note  11 

           ii)								Grant	provisions						 
                          Refer to note 16     

 
4  Determination of fair values

  a number of the trust’s accounting policies and disclosures require the 
determination	of	fair	value,	for	both	financial	and	non-financial	assets	and	liabilities.		
Where applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining 
fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

NZ bonds

  NZ bonds are recognised at amortised cost. the fair value of the NZ bonds is 
$12,691,973	(2015:	$7,244,927).	Fair	value	has	been	determined	using	quoted	
market bid prices from independently sourced market information for NZ bond 
prices.

Listed shares

  listed shares are recognised at fair value. the fair values of listed shares are 
determined by reference to published current bid price quotations in an active 
market.

5 Other revenue

      2016 2015
 government grant received  

by	Waikato	River	Authority	 	 -	 	623,950	

 lease revenue    1,156   1,156

 Rent received   2,447   2,065

 Dividends received            442,000  288,750

        1,521,091   915,921

		 The	Crown	provides	$910,000	(2015:	$910,000)	directly	to	the	Waikato	River	
authority to cover reasonable operational costs for the Waikato River authority and 
the trust. in 2016, an additional $285,000 was granted to cover the Waikato River 
authority’s five year report costs. the Waikato River authority used $1,075,488 to 
cover	costs	relating	to	the	Trust	(2015:	$623,950).

  there are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to grants 
recognised.

6 Finance revenue

  2016 2015
 interest on term deposits  

and investments   545,464   1,403,713 

 Unwind discount on funding receivable   5,384,258   5,493,193 

 capital gain on sale of investments  358,117 13,897

other interest                 473

   6,287,839   6,911,276

7  Other expenses

 Note     2016  2015
 Other expenses include:         

 accounting fees           49,918    57,194 

	 Audit	fees	-	current	year										 	 18,100				 17,677	

	 Audit	fees	-	prior	year										 	 1,574				 -			

 consultant and contractor fees           781,143    751,043 

-
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     2016  2015 

 South	Waikato	District	Council										 	 35,382				 -			

 south Waikato environmental initiatives           36,307    43,595 

 sustainable coastlines charitable  trust           65,867 39,104  

	Tainui	Development	Authority									 	 (223,132)			 562,781	

	Te	Arawa	River	Iwi	Trust										 	 -					 (38,861)

 te awa River Ride charitable trust           58,551   115,362 

 te toke ahu Whanua trust           23,236    23,935 

  tonkin taylor & Mangakotukutuku  
Stream	Care	Group										 	 -					 (5)

	Toro	Atu	Charitable	Trust									 	 79,560	 	(9,758)

	Trees	for	Survival	Trust									 	 	-					 3,986

	Turangawaewae	Trust	Board										 	 73,748			 	-			

	Tuwharetoa	Maori	Trust	Board					 	 					-					 (237,992)

	Waahi	Pa					 	 					-					 (7,696)

	Waikato	District	Council									 	 81,643		 (5,571)

 Waikato Regional council          734,516  409,573

 Waikato Regional council, Maniapoto trust           17,436    14,697 

 Waikato Regional council, Nga Uri a Maahanga          11,468    12,683 

		 Waikato	River	Care	-	Lower	Waikato	River	 
enhancement society inc          280,852  261,929

 Waikato River trails trust          74,750  40,183

	Waikato	University										 	 27,478			 	-			

	Waikato-Tainui	College										 	 264,717				 278,663	

		 Waikato-Tainui	Te	Kauhanganui,	 
Waahi Whaanui trust          151,948  21,530

 Waipa District council          86,972  221,158

 Whaingaroa Harbourcare inc           408,080    189,263 

 Wicklow limited               					 			-						 27,036 

                    3,885,985    3,881,377

9  Cash and cash equivalents

  2016  2015

  Bank balances           2,319,259    2,317,404 

  term deposits with maturities of  
less than 3 months           1,000,585    543,722 

  portfolio call accounts           2,271,466    2,690,197 

pie cash funds                  7,481,869    16,368,355 

 total cash and cash equivalents in  
the statement of cash Flows           13,073,179    21,919,678 

 

 Fair value

 The	carrying	value	of	cash	at	bank	and	short-term	deposits	with	maturities	less	than	
three months approximates their fair value. 
 
Portfolio call accounts         

  portfolio call accounts are recognised at fair value. the fair value of the portfolio call 
accounts are determined by reference to published current bid price quotations in an 
active market.       

 Cash funds         

 cash funds are recognised at fair value. the fair value of the cash funds are 
determined by reference to published current bid price quotations in an active 
market. 

10  Trade and other receivables       

  2016  2015

 Receivables from exchange transactions:         

 prepayments           325    503 

 other trade receivables            2,403    76,754 

   2,728    77,257 

 Fair value

		 Trade	and	other	receivables	are	non-interest	bearing	and	receipt	is	normally	on	 
30-day	terms.	Therefore,	the	carrying	value	of	trade	and	other	receivables	
approximates their fair value.    

11  Funding receivable         

  2016  2015

 Funding receivables  from exchange transactions:         

 current           6,922,174    6,922,174 

	 Non-current										 	 81,883,285    83,832,026 

   88,805,459    90,754,200 

		 Under	the	terms	of	the	Waikato-Tainui	Raupatu	Claims	(Waikato	River)	Settlement	
act 2010, the trust is to receive $7,000,000 each year over the next 22 years in 
settlement funding.  this revenue has been recognised upfront and the related 
receivable	has	been	discounted	back	at	6.0%	which	is	the	upfront	treasury	risk-
free discount rate at settlement. the funding receivable of $154,000,000 has been 
discounted by $69,708,928 to provide for the present value of $84,291,072.         

		 Under	the	terms	of	the	Nga	Wai	o	Maniapoto	(Waipa	River)	Act	2012,	the	Trust	is	to	
receive $1,333,333 in year one and $333,333 each year after over the next 22 years 
in settlement funding. this revenue has been recognised upfront and the related 
receivable	has	been	discounted	back	at	4.69%	which	is	the	treasury	risk-free	rate	
at balance date of 30 June 2012. the funding receivable of $7,333,333 has been 
discounted by $2,818,947 to provide the present value of $4,514,386.        

12  Other financial assets         

  2016  2015

 Current investments         

	 Term	deposits	with	maturities	of	4-12	months											 500,288				 4,114,936	

	 NZ	bonds	(includes	capital	notes)										 							 101,445    1,026,340 

 Total current investments                  601,733    5,141,276 
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      Impairment         

  there have been no impairment losses recognised or reversed for property, plant, 
and	equipment	(2015:	Nil).									

  Work in progress         

  the total amount of property, plant and equipment in the course of construction is 
Nil	(2015:	Nil).								

  Restrictions         

  there are no restrictions over the title of property, plant, and equipment. No 
property, plant, and equipment is pledged as security for liabilities.         

14 Intangible assets

 Management Work in  
 software progress total

 Cost or valuation        

	 Balance	at	1	July	2015									 73,649				 -						 73,649	

	 Additions								 	-					 	-						 -			

 Disposals                                                                 	 -			 		-			 -	

 Balance at 30 June 2016         73,649				 -						 73,649	

 Accumulation amortisation  
and impairment losses         

	 Balance	at	1	July	2015									 45,952		 		-						 45,952	

	 Amortisation	charge									 3,077				 -						 3,077	

 elimination of disposal                                       	 	-				 		-					 	-		 

 Balance at 30 June 2016         49,029			 	-				 		49,029	

 Carrying amounts         

 at 30 June 2015 and 1 July 2015        	27,697			 	-						 27,697 

 at 30 June 2016        	24,620		 		-						 24,620

 there are no restrictions over the title of intangible assets. No intangible assets are 
pledged as security for liabilities.

15  Trade and other payables         

  2016  2015
 Payables from exchange transactions:         

	 Non-trade	payables	and	accrued	expenses										 										 11,615    9,677 

             11,615    9,677 

 Payables from non-exchange transactions:         

 other trade payables           1,002,092    1,072,870 

   1,002,092    1,072,870 

   1,013,707    1,082,547 

	 Trade	and	other	payables	are	non-interest	bearing	and	are	normally	settled	on	 
30-day	terms.	Therefore,	the	carrying	value	of	trade	and	other	payables	
approximates their fair value.         

13 Property, plant and equipment

 

Balance at 1 July 2015  575,278   314,077   13,162   52,196  46,893 1,001,606 

Additions	 -	 -	 4,460	 7,882			 18,696			 	31,038

Disposals                                          																-									 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

Balance at 30 June 2016  575,278   314,077   17,622    60,078   65,589  1,032,644

 Accumulation depreciation  
and impairment losses

Balance	at	1	July	2015	 	24,734			 -		 	2,116		 36,692		 9,011		 72,553	

Depreciation	expense	 	13,145		 	-		 	1,973		 	13,601	 	12,786		 	41,505

elimination of disposal                 														-			 -	 	-		 -	 	-		 -

Balance at 30 June 2016              			37,879			 	-		 4,089		 	50,293	 	21,797		 114,058

Carrying amounts

at 30 June 2015  
and 1 July 2015  550,544   314,077   11,046  15,504   37,882  929,053

at 30 June 2016   537,399     314,077   13,533    9,785   43,792   918,586

cost or valuation Buildings land Furniture & 
fittings

Office	 
equipment

Motor 
vehicles

total

 Non-current investments         

	 NZ	bonds	(includes	capital	notes)										 	 12,590,528				 6,218,587	

 listed shares in australasian equities           6,368,157    6,155,826 

 listed shares in international equities           9,498,629    7,515,534 

 international speciality funds           1,318,999    579,405 

 pie cash funds                  	 8,520,725	 			-	

Total non-current investments           38,297,038    20,469,352 

 Total other financial assets           38,898,771    25,610,628 

 Fair value         

 Term deposits         

 the carrying amount of term deposits approximates their fair value.         

 Listed shares         

  listed shares are recognised at fair value. the fair values of listed shares are 
determined by reference to published current bid price quotations in an active 
market.             

 Bonds         

 Bonds are recognised at fair value. the fair value of the bonds are determined by 
reference to published current bid price quotations in an active market.         

 Speciality and cash funds         

 speciality and cash funds are recognised at fair value. the fair value of the speciality 
and cash funds are determined by reference to published current bid price 
quotations in an active market.

 Fair value hierarchy disclosures         

 For those instruments recognised at fair value in the statement of Financial position, 
fair	values	are	determined	according	to	quoted	market	price	(level	1)	–	Financial	
instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets. 

 Impairment         
 there were no impairment expenses or provisions for other financial assets.  

at balance date, none of these financial assets are either past due or impaired.
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16  Provisions         

  2016  2015
 Grant provisions         

 opening balance           1,857,388    1,867,492 

 additional provisions made           1,456,414    1,314,911 

	 Amount	used									 	 (683,042)	 	(1,244,684)

 Unused amounts reversed         	(316,098)		 (80,331)

 closing balance            2,314,662    1,857,388 

 current           2,314,662    1,857,388 

	 Non-current									 										 	-					 	-   

 total provisions              2,314,662    1,857,388 

          

 Grant provisions         

 the Board approved these payments during the period.  the current portion are   
 grants that will be paid out in the next financial year. 

17  Equity         

 the trust’s capital is its equity which comprises of retained earnings. equity is 
represented by net assets.         

 the trust manages its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and general financing 
dealings	prudently.		The	Trust’s	equity	is	largely	managed	as	a	by-product	of	
managing revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities, and compliance with the Board’s 
instructions.         

 the objective of managing the trust’s equity is to ensure that the trust effectively 
achieves its goals and objectives for which it has been established.         

18  Financial instruments      

     Classification and fair values

     other total  
  loans and available amortised carrying Fair 
  receivables for sale cost amount value 
 Note 2016 2016 2016 2016  2016 
Financial assets

	 Funding	receivable		 11			 81,883,285			 	-			 	-			 	81,883,285		 		81,883,285	

 other financial assets  12     	 -				 38,297,038			 	-				 38,297,038				 38,297,038 

	 Total	non-current			 
financial	assets			 	 	81,883,285				 38,297,038		 		-				 120,180,323				 120,180,323	

	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents	 9			 13,073,179			 	-			 	-				 13,073,179				 13,073,179	

	 Trade	and	other	receivables		 10			 2,728			 -				 -				 2,728				 2,728	

	 Funding	receivable		 11			 6,922,174			 	-			 	-				 6,922,174				 6,922,174	

 other financial assets  12    	 500,288				 101,445		 		-				 601,733				 601,733	

 total current financial assets        	 20,498,371		 		101,445		 		-				 20,599,816				 20,599,816	

 Total financial assets     102,381,656				 38,398,483		 		-				 140,780,139			 140,780,139

 Financial liabilities      

 trade and other payables  15     	 	-		 		-			 	1,013,707				 1,013,707				 1,013,707	

 total current liabilities        	 	-			 	-				 1,013,707				 1,013,707				 1,013,707	

 Total financial liabilities         	 -			 	-				 1,013,707				 1,013,707				 1,013,707	

 

     other total  
  loans and available amortised carrying Fair 
  receivables for sale cost amount value 
 Note 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015

 Financial assets

	 Funding	receivable	 11	 	83,832,026		 	-		 	-		 	83,832,026		 	83,832,026	

 other financial assets 12     	 -	 	20,469,352		 	-		 	20,469,352		 	20,469,352	

	 Total	non-current	 
financial	assets	 	 	83,832,026		 	20,469,352		 	-		 	104,301,378		 	104,301,378	

	 Cash	and	cash	equivalents	 9	 	21,919,678		 	-		 	-		 	21,919,678		 	21,919,678	

	 Trade	and	other	receivables	 10	 	77,257		 	-		 	-		 	77,257		 	77,257	

	 Funding	receivable	 11	 	6,922,174		 	-		 	-		 	6,922,174		 	6,922,174	

 other financial assets 12     	 	4,114,936		 	1,026,340		 	-		 5,141,276		 	5,141,276	

 total current financial assets      	 	33,034,045		 1,026,340		 	-		 34,060,385		 	34,060,385 

 Total financial assets       	116,866,071		 21,495,692		 	-		 	138,361,763		 	138,361,763 

      

 Financial liabilities      

 trade and other payables 15     	 	-		 	-		 	1,082,547		 	1,082,547		 1,082,547 

 total current liabilities      	 	-		 	-		 	1,082,547	 1,082,547		 	1,082,547

 Total financial liabilities      	 	-		 	-		 	1,082,547		 	1,082,547		 	1,082,547		
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19  Capital commitments        

	 As	at	30	June	2016,	the	Trust	had	no	capital	commitments	(2015:	Nil).								

20  Related parties        

 Related party disclosures have not been made for transactions with related parties 
that are within a normal supplier or client/recipient relationship on terms and 
condition no more or less favourable than those that it is reasonable to expect the 
trust would have adopted in dealing with the party at arm’s length in the same 
circumstances.        

 Related party disclosures have also not been made for transactions with entities 
related	to	the	Trust	(such	as	funding	and	financing	flows),	where	the	transactions	are	
consistent with the normal operating relationships between the entities and are on 
normal terms and conditions for such transactions.

 Transactions with key management personnel including Trustees        

 Key management personnel compensation comprised:        

   Notes 2016 2015
 Trustee fees

	 	-	H	Biddle	 Iwi	appointee	 	 	4,104		 	4,104	

	 	-	P	Buckley	 Crown	appointee	 	 	4,560		 	2,736	

	 	-	A	Livingston	 Crown	appointee	 	 	3,648		 	4,788	

	 	-	Hon.	J	Luxton	 Crown	appointee	 	 	45,990		 	9,125	

	 	-	T	Morgan	 Iwi	appointee	 	 	41,610		 	6,570	

	 	-	R	Pikia	 Iwi	appointee	 	 	42,545		 	18,677	

	 	-	J	Vernon	 Crown	appointee	 	 	8,664		 	5,472	

	 -	W	Maag	 Iwi	appointee	 	 	5,244		 	2,508	

	 -	T	Houpapa	 Crown	appointee	 	 	2,280		 	1,856	

	 -	V	Eparaima	 Iwi	appointee	 										  1,824   1,824 

   7  160,469   57,660

 Trustee expenses

	 -	H	Biddle	 	 	 	1,804		 	2,143	

	 -	P	Buckley	 	 	 	1,294		 	769	

	 -	A	Livingston	 	 	 	390		 	497	

	 -	T	Morgan	 	 	 	221		 	52	

	 -	R	Pikia	 	 	 	945		 	2,529	

	 -	J	Vernon	 	 	 	773		 	1,016	

	 -	W	Maag	 	 	 	833		 	592	

	 -	V	Eparaima	 	 	 	475		 	633	

	 -	T	Houpapa	 	 									  52   1,856 

   7           6,787   8,231 

 total paid to trustees       167,256   65,891 

	 Contractor	expenses	(1	FTE)	 	 	 	246,346		 	244,884	

 Total key management personnel compensation   413,602   310,775

 Key management personnel have not entered into any transactions with the trust 
other than the above.        

       Key management personnel include the trustees and chief executive. No  
post-employment,	termination	and	other	long-term	benefits	have	been	supplied	to	
key management personnel.         

 all transactions and outstanding balances with these related parties are priced on 
an arm’s length basis and are to be settled in cash within 6 months of the reporting 
date.  None of the balances are secured. the trust Board members are not involved in 
approving any grant funding for organisations they are involved in.        

 all grants are approved at an arm’s length.        

 No provision has been required, nor any expense recognised for impairment of 
receivables,	for	any	loans	or	receivables	to	related	parties	(2015:	Nil).								

21 Funding Commitments

 Grants

 the trust has funding commitments relating to grant applications for the following 
funding recipients.

         2016  2015

 3 Way charitable trust         1    1,438 

 auckland/Waikato Fish and game         6,389    38,371 

 Dairy NZ         1,255,446    1,171,243 

 Department of conservation         113,155    6,253 

	 Hamilton	City	Council						 	 		-						 12,801	

 K & K Butcher         21,182    29,914 

	 Kerr	Farms	Limited								 	 69,661		 		-			

 landcare Research ltd         17,150    44,535 

	 Landcorp	Farming	Limited							 		 26,149		 		-			

	 Lewisridge	Farms	Limited									 	 -	 -			

 lincoln University         89,056    155,882 

 lower Mangapiko stream care group         9,723    1,438 

 Mangakotukutuku stream care group         115,359    1,286 

	 Maniapoto	Maori	Trust	Board									 	 -	 67,292	

 N J & l M Williams Dairy Farm         10,327    81,497 

	 National	Wetland	Trust	of	New	Zealand	Inc								 	 -	 	67,183	

	 Ngaa	Uri	a	Maahanga									 	 -	 1,725	

 Ngaati Haua Mahi trust         188,495    39,850 

	 Ngaati	Tahu-Ngaati	Whaoa	Runanga	Trust								 	 157,656				 18,234	

 Nikau Family estate trust         309,872    106,760 

 NiWa         926,451    204,450 

	 NIWA-Waikato	Raupatu	River	Trust									 	 -	 969,709	

 NZ Farm environment trust         600    1,200 

	 NZ	Landcare	Trust									 	 -	 1,892	

 opus international consultants ltd         183    8,883 

 pukeroa Hangatiki Mineral Blocks         18,767    34,971 

 Queen elizabeth ii National trust         24,650    56,321 

	 S	Francis								 	 18,337			 -

	 S	Muir								 	 13,800				 -			

 solid energy NZ ltd & Waahi Whanui trust         8,387    60,795 

	 South	Waikato	District	Council								 	 6,076			 	-			

 south Waikato enviromental initiatives   7,746    69,366 

 sustainable coastlines charitable trust         64,383    167,030 

 tainui Development authority         648,030    372,240 
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  2016  2015

	 Te	Arawa	River	Iwi	Trust						 		-						 67,333	

 te toke ahu Whenua trust        36,812    63,533 

 toro atu charitable trust        19,304    110,797 

 turangawaewae trust Board        212,946    297,756 

 Waikato District council        360,637    6,406 

 Waikato Regional council        843,957    1,191,245 

 Waikato Regional council &  
Maniapoto trust        663    20,715 

 Waikato Regional council  
& Nga Uri a Maahanga        7,092    20,280 

	 Waikato	River	Care	-	Lower	Waikato	 
River enhancement society inc        343,471    493,691 

 Waikato River trails trust        205,000    93,144 

	 Waikato	University								 7,900		 		-			

	 Waikato-Tainui	Endowed	College								 85,200				 390,413	

	 Waikato-Tainui	Te	Kauhanganui,	 
Waahi	Whaanui	Trust	and	Genesis	Power					 			-					 174,740	

 Waipa District council        115,545    239,968 

 Whaingaroa Harbourcare inc                        154,313    412,525 

      6,519,871   7,375,105

 grants approved may include multiple grant applications/projects to make up the 
total included.     

22  Contingent liabilities        

	 As	at	30	June	2016,	the	Trust	had	no	contingent	liabilities	to	disclose	(2015:	Nil).		

23  Subsequent events        

	 As	at	30	June	2016,	the	Trust	had	no	subsequent	events	to	disclose	(2015:	Nil).										


